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RESULTS

Revenues

Gross profit/(loss)
Operating loss

(Loss)/profit attributable to:

(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests
Loss per share — Basic (RMB)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total debt

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY
BT ERE

LN
£/ (E8
KEEE
TS ER
(B8 /5%
() FTREMEE
(i) FFERED
BRBE
—Ex (ARH)

BEE

BREE

BaR

N R IBRESE
() Z=REMEE
(i) FFERED

E |
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017
—Z°%F —T-hE ZE-N\E ZE—tE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®BTRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR
126,384 122,374 55,016 43,428
13,870 21,044 18,495 11,956
(74,812) (121,284) (156,578) (58,999)
(73,784) (139,165) (164,403) (56,493)
(755) (4,385) (194) 162
(0.0889) (0.2028) (0.3161) (0.1560)

= ==

BEKRER

As at 31 December
®+ZB=+-H

2020 2019 2018 2017
“E-TF —T-hE ZT-\FE ZT—tE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®BTRE ARETRT ARBTR ARETR
433,245 465,158 477,201 312,323
193,623 169,124 177,061 9,113
371,513 350,043 289,239 64,716
54,230 106,907 175,282 239,638
7,502 8,208 12,680 7,969

2016
ZE-RE

RMB'000
AREFR

57,759
9,725
(44,461)

(57,129)
737

(0.1756)

2016
ZE-RE

RMB'000
ARETR

367,427
11,350
67,508

294,227
5,692
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

MR E R 2

FINANCIAL RATIOS

PAES b=

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZZITE ZE-NE ZZ-N\E ZIZT—tE IZT—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR¥ETR ARBTR ARETR
Gross profits margins: ERE:
(i) Overall () =g 11.0% 17.2% 33.6% 27.7% 16.8%
(i) Newspaper and vehicles advertising (i) BAERBHEEES 45.1% 45.4% 57.1% 40.9% (5.4%)
(ili) Marketing, consulting and printing services (i) E#HFAR
ENRIBR 10.7% 25.6% 30.7% 24.9% 26.2%
(iv) Sales of agricultural products (v HEREM 9.6% 12.5% 0.5% - -
(v) Others (v) Hth (374.1%) 37.5% 100% -
Operating margins REFBE (59.2%) (99.1%) (284.7%) (135.9%) (77.0%)
Net margins FHE% (59.0%)  (117.2%)  (299.3%)  (129.7%)  (97.6%)
Return on equity BAERE (1207%)  (1247%)  (87.6%)  (22.8%)  (18.8%)
Return on assets @ BEDRER (17.2%) (30.8%) (34.5%) (18.0%) (15.3%)
Trade receivables turnover (days) BoRUFEREX (H) 17 26 46 54 52
Trade payables turnover (days) BoRAFEREX (A) 168 55 404 609 464
Gearing ratio BEAGILX 44.7% 36.4% 37.1% 2.9% 3.1%
Notes: MIsE -
M Return on equity is calculated based on loss for the year divided by O ARG FANEERUE R BRETE
total equity.
@ Return on assets is calculated based on loss for the year divided by @ HELRXEFNGERUEEESHE.

total assets.
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In 2020, the sudden COVID-19 epidemic outbreak caused serious
impact on the global economy and made the prospects for
recovery full of uncertainties. Thanks to the stringent epidemic
prevention and control measures and the sound results achieved
in work and production resumption, China’s annual GDP increased
by 2.3% year-on-year despite global economic contraction, which
made it become the only major economy in the world to achieve

positive economic growth.

As affected by the epidemic, industries such as accommodation
and catering, cultural and sports, tourism, and offline retail were
significantly affected. With residents’ weakened consumption
initiatives and reduced spending in advertisement, the domestic
advertising market has been declining continuously since February
last year. However, as the epidemic prevention and control has
gradually stabilized, it is still able to achieve sustained growth. For
the film industry, after half a year of suspension, cinemas in China
gradually resumed operation in the second half year and achieved
rapid recovery. During the year under review, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately RMB126.4 million from its principal
business (2019: RMB122.4 million). The net loss after taxation
was reduced to approximately RMB54.1 million (2019: RMB143.5

million).

In recent years, the Group has been focusing on restructuring
its publishing and advertising businesses by consolidating them
with the cultural and film media businesses in the PRC. We
identify opportunities that can generate synergy with the Group's
business, so as to broaden our income sources and reduce the
reliance on printed media business that has been impacted by

external environment.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHRESE

TECEFRMHERNNEMXEERE
KEBENBEGR ERART R TERE
e MBI AREL T BARBVEIBRIEER > E
BEIRESTERSREMM EE2KEEE
MERVIBER T 2FGDPELLLIEBR2.3% AL
KE—EREEEERNTELER-

RIABBEE TEEN XBRERETS
ESTERIBRAEE BERFERNMEE
BEEHERL BRESTHBEFN2AH
BEET A BRELBHERAESEE
RIEMEBFEER -BRTEAE PEF
RERKEXFEEE R TEEERSEI B
RIRREH -REIEFAN ZEBNFEER
WABREBHUARBI264BE T (CE—NE !
AR122458) - REGEIFBREENR
ARES418EBT CE—NF: ARKK1435
BEIT) °

EFER FEBRNEBEGTEXERE
FREXD EHEMKRESES  URYE
FEREEEBELEHRAMEAIKE  KEmA
REWARER LEREHESIIEREFEN
ENR IR BE EF5BUIKHE o

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

7



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITREREE

ACTIVELY EMBRACING NEW MEDIA
AND FURTHER ACHIEVING BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

With the development of information technology, the traditional
print media advertising market continues to be impacted, while
new media is developing rapidly and becomes increasingly
powerful, and has become an important driving force for the rapid
growth of the domestic media industry. Therefore, during the year
under review, the Group strived to increase investments in the
new media sector such as mobile media advertising to capture
the business opportunities arising from the transformation and
upgrade that combine the strength of online and offline activities
in the new media era. During the year, the Company added the
mobile media advertising business, which contributed RMB6.0
million to the Group’s revenue during the period, with a gross

profit margin of 44.0%.

At the same time, the Group has launched a smart mobile APP
that adopts blockchain technology and offers information,
e-commerce, advertising and consultancy services. We believe this
APP will help us grasping strong market demand brought by the
development of mobile Internet. Moreover, the Group entered
into an acquisition and a joint venture, both relating to new
media business, hoping to form synergy with the Group’s existing
businesses, and broaden the Group’s income stream in the long

run.
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CONTINUE EXPANDING INTEGRATED
PROJECTS AND STRENGTHENING BUSINESS
SYNERGY

The Group focuses on providing customers with value-added
services such as advertising, marketing and consulting. At the
same time, the Group actively leverages its experience and
resources in the advertising, film, culture and media industries
to develop integrated projects on the theme of film or media
by seeking locations with unique environmental elements for
developing integrated projects focusing on industry positioning,
cultural heritage, tourism features, eco-agriculture, entertainment
and community functions such as health and wellness, so as to

form synergies with the existing businesses.

Moreover, the Group will continue to endeavour to improve cost
control and resources allocation, utilise resources more effectively
and improve operational efficiency. By virtue of the Group's
existing brand effect and customer base, our comprehensive
strengths such as cross-regional coverage and cross-media
platforms will play an important role in our transformation and

development.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management team and all employees for their hard work and
dedication. At the same time, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our respectable shareholders, customers and business

partners for their long-term trust and unwavering support.

Chen Zhi
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 April 2021

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB mED

INDUSTRY REVIEW
In 2020 (the
continuously affected by the COVID-19. China is expected to

“Review Period”), the global economy was
become the only major economy in the world to achieve positive
economic growth. In 2020, China’s annual gross domestic product
(GDP) was RMB101.6 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 2.3%), exceeding the RMB100 trillion mark for the first time.
From the quarterly perspective, the GDP decreased by 6.8% year-
on-year in the first quarter as it was most seriously affected by the
epidemic. However, its GDP began to bottom out and rebounded
in the second quarter with a growth of 3.2%. In the third quarter,
the GDP growth rate continued to accelerate, up by 4.9%. The
GDP growth rate reached 6.5% in the fourth quarter, which was
even higher than the 6% growth rate in the fourth quarter of
2019.

Despite the GDP data revealed that China’s economy has begun
to regain its upward trend and it is believed that the growth
momentum will continue. However, as the growth is mainly driven
by investment and exports, the domestic consumer demand

recovery remains weak.

In 2020, the Chinese advertisement market generally showed a
trend of low first and high afterwards. According to the CTR data,
in 2020, China’s advertising expenditures fell by 11.6% year-on-
year, which was 4.2 percentage points higher than that of 2019.
This was mainly due to the overall decline in advertising demand

throughout the year due to the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EE]
RhERETE —E224 () 21K
REMAREZIEGER - PEABARAA S
KE—BRCEFEENFIELER 2
“EFHEBEANEEREZEAREI01.68E
oo BB R23% EXRBH—EBEREAM-
NEEE —FTEXRBEXEREE GDP
BILE TP&6.8%; _ETEMRMBRKE B R

32%; ZEIRRMBENR BRA9%; =
EiHEF65% HE_E—NFNEE%
REES -

REUCOPHEE R RENCHECHBER
FH o AR E 1A 18 R B ED G AT B
BEBNIBREREMNE D BNERE
RIEREZ S o

—ECEFPEESTRARERAERES
HES HCTRER ) —_E-_EFHhRAEST
BIIEEBRLLLTM11.6% BIER _T—NEHRE
RT42E R FTERSHERERE
PEESRMEBREBERM TN E-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of channels, the advertising revenue on TV, radio,
newspapers,

decreased by 13.5%,

magazines and traditional outdoor advertising
19.9%, 28.2%, 30.0% and 4.1%,
respectively, while the advertising revenue on TVs in elevators and
posters in elevators increased by 23.8% and 28.9%, respectively.
In terms of industry sectors, the food industry invested a lot in
advertising through multiple channels but only achieved a slow
growth, whereas IT products and services industry recorded a
growth rate of 46.9%, making it the only industry among the top

ten advertising industries to record an increase in advertising.

Since the film market in Mainland China resumed its works on 20
July 2020, the box office of urban cinemas nationwide reached
RMB8.061 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 39.2%. During the
period under review, total box office was RMB20.417 billion,
down by 68.2% year-on-year. Backed by the favourable situation
of epidemic prevention and control in China, for the first time, it

has become the film market with highest box office in the world.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group successfully expanded
its bus TV advertising agency business. Together with the increase
in revenue from an exclusive marketing and promotion services
project secured by the Group from a property development project
in China, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB126.4 million from
its principal business (2019: RMB122.4 million). The gross profit
was RMB13.9 million (2019: RMB21.0 million). The gross profit
margin was 11.0%. The net loss after taxation was reduced to
approximately RMB74.5 million (2019: RMB143.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD

Newspapers and Public Vehicles Advertising

The business environment remained challenging in the print
media market as the market was hit by new online media and
the COVID-19 outbreak. The newspapers advertising industry
recorded a double-digit decline in 2020. Together with the intense
competition from new media and the Internet, although the daily
circulation and the number of printed pages of Southeast Express
operated by the Group remained unsatisfactory, however, the
revenue from the newspapers advertising only slightly decreased
to RMB4.1 million during the reporting period (2019: RMB4.4
million), with a gross profit margin of 46.3%. The public vehicles
advertising is a new project this year which mainly generates
revenue from TV advertisements on public vehicles, and has

contributed RMB6.0 million to the Group’s revenue during the

period, with a gross profit margin of 44.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Marketing and Consulting Services and Printing Services

In 2020, the Group’s revenue from marketing and consulting
services was approximately RMB55.1 million, representing a
significant increase of 131.5% as compared with 2019, while
the gross profit margin was 9.6%. The increase in revenue was
principally due to the contribution of an exclusive marketing and
promotion services project secured by the Group from a property
development project in China. The revenue from printing services
was RMB4.3 million, approximate to that of the corresponding

period in 2019, with a gross profit margin of 25.1%.

Sales of Agricultural Products

As of the end of 2020, the Group’s revenue from sales of
agricultural products was approximately RMB56.2 million (2019:
RMB87.3 million), while the gross profit margin was 9.6%. The
sales of agricultural products of the Group focus on ornamental
plants, the sales of which are generally peaked towards the end
of the calendar year. However, due to the impact of the COVID-19

outbreak, the revenue decreased significantly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE AT

Internet and Other Services

During the period under review, the Group was still conducting
market survey to decide the business models of www.dnkb.com.cn
and www.duk.cn and as such, the Internet services segment has

yet to contribute any revenue to the Group.

During the period under review, the Group entered into the
JV Agreement with Versatile Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Versatile
Technologies”) in relation to the joint investment in the JV
Company for the purpose of engaging in a new media project in
China. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the JV Company is held as
to 51% by Graceful Universe Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and the remaining 49% equity is held
by Versatile Technologies. The intended scope of business of the
JV Company includes advertising, e-commerce, business and
information consultancy, computing and internet technology, and
system integration. These new projects are hoped to form synergy
and all value to the Group’s existing businesses, and to broaden

the Group's income stream in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Tourism and Integrated Developments Segment

In line with the national policy of distinctive town construction,
development and investment with an aim to promoting the
regional development and rural revitalisation in China, the Group
entered into a framework agreement with the government of
Yongtai County of Fuzhou to undertake the project of “Yongtai
Kungfu Distinctive Town” with a theme of film and cultural
entertainment. The first phase of the project has completed
most of its construction works during the year and features a
60-Chinese mu eco-friendly greenhouse farm and ecologic forests
with a total area of over 10,000 Chinese mu. The Group intends
to develop this part of the project into a full-chain ecological
production center that integrates seed production, plantation,
processing and sales of agricultural products. We are actively
developing a marketing service ecosystem. We used the outdoor
advertising screen as the portal and analyzed the advertising
conversion rate using big data technologies, so as to provide
high precision marketing service platform. At the same time, the
Group has launched a smart mobile APP that adopts blockchain
technology and offers information, e-commerce, advertising and

consultancy services. We believe this APP will help us grasping

market opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB mED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue increased slightly by 3.3% from RMB122.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB126.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the increased
revenue from marketing and consulting services. Revenue from
marketing and consulting services increased from RMB23.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB55.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Revenue from newspaper and
public vehicle advertising increased from RMB4.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB10.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Revenue from the sales of agricultural
products decreased from RMB87.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB56.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Revenue from printing services decreased slightly
from RMB4.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB4.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 33.8% from RMB21.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB13.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Gross profit margin decreased
from 17.2% in 2019 to 11.0% in 2020, which was primarily
attributable to the lower gross profit margin of the revenue from
marketing and consulting services for the new exclusive marketing

and promotion services project.

Other income

Other income increased from RMBO0.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB2.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, mainly due to the Group has obtained

government grant of RMB2.8 million in the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 35.2% from
RMB12.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB7.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly
due to reduction in marketing expenses from RMB10.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB7.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by 10.7% from
RMB63.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB56.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly
due to (i) decrease in provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets of RMB5.5 million; and (ii) decrease in foreign exchange
gain from RMB3.5 million to foreign exchange loss of RMB3.7
million offset by (i) increase in provision for impairment of

property, plant and equipment of RMB3.9 million.

Loss before income tax

As a result of (i) the non-recurrence in 2020 of the one-off
provision for impairment on goodwill; (ii) decrease in selling and
marketing expense; and (iii) lower finance costs, but partially
offset by the effect of provision for impairment of intangible
assets. Loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB93.2 million, representing a decrease of 37.3% as
compared to loss before income tax of RMB148.6 million for the

year ended 31 December 2019.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss for the year of RMB74.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
48.1% as compared to loss for the year of RMB143.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Decrease in loss for the year
was mainly attributable to the decrease in one-off provision on
impairment for goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2019,
offset by the effect of provision for impairment of intangible

assets and property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB mED

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests
As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to non-
controlling interests decreased from RMB4.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB0.8 million for the year ended

31 December 2020.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to owners of the
Company decreased from RMB139.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB73.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB433.2 million (2019: RMB465.2 million) and
total borrowings of approximately RMB193.6 million (2019:
RMB169.1 million), representing a gearing ratio, defined as total
borrowings over total assets, of approximately 44.7% (2019:
36.4%).

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB32.8
million (2019: RMB20.0 million),
assets of approximately RMB67.9 million (2019: RMB67.7 million)

calculated from the current

and current liabilities of approximately RMB100.7 million (2019:
RMB87.7 million),
0.7 (2019: 0.8).

representing a current ratio of approximately

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB14.3 million,
RMB1.4 million (2019: RMB10.9 million).

including restricted cash of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Going concern

During year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported a
net loss of RMB74,539,000 and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of RMB6,339,000. As at 31 December
2020, the Group's current liabilities exceeds its current assets
by RMB32,728,000 while it had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB12,889,000.

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak that led
to a series of severe administrative control and precautionary
measures taken by governments and authorities in Mainland
China temporarily disrupted the operations of the Group's various
business and in particular the progress of the Group’s tourism and
integrated development has been delayed. Management expects
that the China’s government would launch additional proactive
economic and monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle
and is confident that the Group’s operation will be recovered in
2021.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the ability of

the Group to continue as a going concern.

In order to improve the Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company have been implementing various measures as set out
in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, including the
commencement of commercial operations of projects to generate
income and operating cashflows, obtaining the letter of support
from the major shareholder, renewing of bank facilities, raising
funds through placement of the Company’s shares, cost-control
measures, expedition in debt collection, generating sufficient
inflow from the sales of properties held for sale and deference of

discretionary capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections described above and after
taking into account the reasonably possible changes in the
operation performance, believe there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group at least in the coming twelve

months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.

Cash flows used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB6.3 million, primarily attributable to
the loss before income tax for the year amounted to RMB93.2
million and partially offset by non-cash items, which primarily
included (i) net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB6.5 million; (ii) provision for impairment of
intangible assets amounted to RMB21.6 million, (iii) finance costs
of RMB18.4 million; and (iv) depreciation and amortisation of
RMB11.7 million.

Cash flows used in investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash used in investing
activities amounted to RMB13.7 million, resulted primarily from
payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired of
RMB12.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash flows generated from financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to RMB23.2 million, mainly
attributable to the drawdown of bank borrowings of RMB15.4
million and net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares of
RMB13.8 million.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures incurred during the year are mainly for the
purchase or construction costs related to properties, plant and
equipment. Capital expenditures were RMB31.0 million and
RMB1.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020,

respectively.

Trade receivables — net
The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Trade receivables decreased by 42.7% from RMB9.6 million as at
31 December 2019 to RMB5.5 million as at 31 December 2020.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in provision

for impairment of trade receivables by RMB6.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Properties held for sale

As at 31 December 2020, properties held for sale amounted to
approximately RMB24.3 million (2019: RMB25.4 million). The
properties in the PRC were received in exchange of advertising
services to real estate developers in the PRC. The Group’s
intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly, such rights
are recognised as properties held for sale upon the completion of
the advertising sales transaction if the related properties are ready

to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of the
properties with reference to their market value with the assistance
of an independent property valuer. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the management compared the carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell of the properties and considered no

further impairment provision is necessary (2019: Nil).

Trade payables

The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables based on
invoice dates is set out in Note 11. Trade payables increased
from approximately RMB8.1 million as at 31 December 2019
to RMB11.8 million as at 31 December 2020. Trade payables
turnover days increased from 55 days for the year ended 31
December 2019 to 168 days for the year ended 31 December
2020 due to significant decrease of purchases in sales of

agricultural products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Indebtedness

Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including

commercial banks and certain related parties and companies.

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
obtained mortgage loans amounting to RMB15,470,000 to
finance the Group's acquisition of properties. Transaction
costs directly attributable to mortgage loans amounted
to RMB35,000. The mortgage loans were drawn on 27
February 2015 and a further prepayment of RMB15,470,000
was made by the Group to Xiamen Information Group
Ltd. for the properties. The mortgage loans are secured by
the ownership rights of the properties and the personal
guarantees of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang Hui, a key
management and the spouse of a key management of a
subsidiary of the Group respectively. Total consideration for
the properties is RMB22,164,000, of which the initial down
payment of RMB6,694,000 was paid by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2020, the mortgage loans were classified
as current liabilities due to the related loan agreements
containing a repayment on demand clause which gives
the bank unconditional right to call the loans at any time.
The mortgage terms are 7 years and are denominated in
RMB. The mortgage loans are carried at quarterly adjusted
floating interest of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest
as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a
similar length. The effective interest rate for the year was
7.40% (2019: 7.31%) per annum.

&18

==

EEEREAD

EEOEGENERA QEBERTURET
15

FEALRAR) BVEE

(a)

o

RBEE_Z—HAFE+A=+—H
LEE AEENESRBERARE
15,470,000 BAEE K EYZERE o
RIBENEERERENRZRABARE
35,000  ZERBEREN ZZE—48
FZRZHtHER MAEBEEMZ
EMERNBEMIEEEEBRATE—F
FE AR #15,470,0007c HIFRIE - 418
ERUZEMENFERURAER —
KMBEBLARANETEZEER A S WHEN
FEEEASENEBRERMENEA
BEREBER ZEMWENERKBAAR
#22,164,00070 A EBEBREBEE-S
—NE+ZA=+—HLEFEZNEH
B AR 16,694,0007T ©

RIE_EFE+_A=+—H B
ERBENNEMERBEHRBRENX
BIBIRA I FIRITERGETBER B
WER BMZERBERDEARDE
B HBEHATE  UARBHE %
ERBENZIEFE  ARFEAS
BEARBITHEAUFHETRENELE
ERMEN11E SFHAE FRER
FEFEATL0E (CE—HFE7.31F) °

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

23



24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 23 April 2019, the 3% per annum convertible bonds in
the principal amount of RMB215,750,000 were issued by
the Company to the Subscriber, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Chen Zhi, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director and a shareholder of the Company. The
convertible bond has a term of 3 years. The effective interest
rate for the period is 11.5% per annum. As at 31 December
2020, the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bond was approximately RMB177,309,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained a revolving bank borrowing amounted to
RMB5,900,000. The revolving bank borrowing was drawn
on 17 April 2020. The balance is secured by the ownership
right of the Group’s properties, carries an interest rate at
4.0% per annum with a term of 1 year. The balance is

denominated in RMB.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained a bank borrowing amounted to RMB9,000,000.
The bank borrowing was drawn on 25 September 2020. The
balance is secured by the ownership right of the Group's
properties in Xiamen, carries an interest rate at 3.85% per
annum with a term of 1 year. The balance is denominated in
RMB.

Gearing ratio, being the proportion of the Group’s total

borrowings to total assets, increased from 36.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 44.7% for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commitments
(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
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cancellable operating leases are as follows: MEETNE -
2020 2019
—_TFF “EBE-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®ETFT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (2B 12)
Not later than 1 year —FELLF 1,205 2,000
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ~ —&EU ERAFELTF 5,323 4,000
More than five years "EME 1,466 =
7,994 6,000

(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEKIE

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of

the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as

RREPARBITHEREIREENE
REARZIWTF :

follows:
2020 2019
—EEHE —_E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (RE1%)
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 4,266 4,266

Contingent liabilities

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine when should
contingent liabilities be recognised, which requires significant

judgement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible obligation
has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed by future events
outside the Group's control, or when it is not possible to calculate
the amount. Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact on the

Group's financial position.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

Litigation

Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Fanxing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a lease
agreement with the landlord, the land owner of the project site
for the Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project. The landlord filed
a claim against Beijing Fanxing claiming that Beijing Fanxing
failed to fulfil its responsibilities under the strategic cooperative
agreement and seeking to rescind the strategic cooperative
agreement and the lease agreement entered into between Beijing
Fanxing and the landlord. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
considers that Beijing Fanxing has good prospects of defending
the claims in related to rescinding of the lease agreement and the
legal proceedings are unlikely to result in rescinding of the lease

agreement as well as any material outflow of economic benefits

from the Group.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 261 full-time employees
(2019: 257). Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were RMB31.5 million (2019:
RMB44.3 million).

The remuneration of the directors is evaluated by the
remuneration committee, which also makes recommendations to
the Board. In addition, the remuneration committee reviews the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure, of the

Group's senior management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company operates an employee share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to incentivise or reward eligible individuals
who provide services to the Company for their contributions and
their continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Company,
and for other purposes as the Board may approve from time to
time. The employee share option scheme lapsed in November
2020.

PROSPECTS

China’s GDP maintained positive growth in 2020, indicating that
China’s economy remains resilient. Chinese officials also set the
economic growth target for 2021 at more than 6%. In addition,
the Central Economic Work Conference pointed out that in 2021,
China will stick to the strategic basis of expanding domestic
demand, and will make systematic arrangements in terms of
promoting employment, improving social security, optimizing
income distribution structure, and rationally increasing public

consumption.

With the introduction of favorable policies, it is expected that
in 2021, the consumer market will continue to accelerate the
recovery, the scale of commodity consumption will further expand,
China is expected to become the world’s largest consumer of
commodities, the proportion of service consumption will further
increase, and the consumption structure of residents will continue
to upgrade, the integration of online and offline consumption will
accelerate, and the innovation in new business forms and new

models will develop in a healthier and more sustainable way.

On the other hand, the world film industry is marching towards
the digital industry era. Innovative technologies such as 5G,
mobile Internet, and digital information have provided strong
support for the development of the film and television cultural
industry. Take the Spring Festival holiday in 2021 as an example,
the movie box office has recorded RMB7.822 billion, and Chinese

films and TV series have begun to move towards higher quality.
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Going forward, these positive factors are expected to drive
the Group to continue to develop its existing businesses
of advertising, marketing and consulting, and agricultural
products. At the same time, the Group will continue to focus
on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses by
consolidating with cultural and film media businesses in PRC, so
as to broaden the long-term income sources of the Group. The
Group will more actively leverage its experience and resources
in the advertising, film, culture and media industries to develop
integrated projects on the theme of film or media, and develop
these projects focusing on industry positioning, cultural heritage,
tourism features, eco-agriculture, entertainment and community
functions such as health and wellness, so as to form synergies
with the existing businesses. In addition, the Group will continue
to strive to identify suitable industry partners and investment or
cooperation projects to capture business opportunities which form
synergy with our existing businesses, as well as the transformation
and upgrade that combine the strength of online and offline

activities in the new media era.

COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak that led
to a series of severe administrative control and precautionary
measures taken by governments and authorities in Mainland
China temporarily disrupted the operations of the Group's various
business and in particular the progress of the Group's tourism and
integrated development has been delayed. Management expects
that the China’s government would launch additional proactive
economic and monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle
and is confident that the Group's operation will be recovered in
2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 55, is an executive Director. He is a qualified
accountant as conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen
was a cadre of the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to
1989 (during which he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988
to pursue his studies at Fujian Radio and Television University),
deputy section chief of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology
Development Area Tax Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and
subsequently the section chief from 1993 to 2002. He joined our
Group in 2003 and pioneered our distinctive business model of
cooperating with newspaper partners to provide integrated print
media services to advertisers, undertook the main decision-making
role in the management of our overall operations and oversaw
the strategic development of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director
of our Company on 9 December 2009, resigned as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 January 2016 and
resigned as the chairman of the Company on 25 February
2016. On 9 October 2019, Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen
has accumulated more than ten years of relevant experience
from developing the business of our Group and possesses a deep
understanding of the PRC print media and advertising industries.
Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Radio and Television University
in 1988 with a diploma in financial economics. Mr. Chen is one
of our controlling shareholders. He is also a director of TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”). Mr.
Chen is the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of

the Company.

EFMEREEERRE

HITES

PRE L 555 P AT EF o W 4 B AR SR
AMNEERESM - RAEER—NANZEE
—hAN\NE WEREBR—ANZEE—R/N
FRAEEBINTREEBRER/AERE)
HEMNEBERFREN—REE R—AN
FE-NANZFERABNEERMHAEERT
BHEMR BN -—NANA=ZFE"FZT_
FHEARR - BR _ZEE=ZFMALXER "
WHAIRATEH - EHRL (BN ER
EAaBAGF MESERRHEESEORE
RRE) T AREBEREEEEDEES
BRRACKEEAEENRBRAE KN
“ERAF+_ANBEZERTATHNE
FBATTBRBERRTES N _Z—RFE—A8
“TTABRMEERRNEREATE LK
T-ARNE_A-+EHBEARBNER-
RIE-NETANB BRELEEZEIA
ARBDERRTHBR RAEENRBEREE
BEFHEER T FHRBAER SERAREED
RIREEREESITE - REER—ANNER
ERNEREREBERE BBV HBEXR-
REERERRNERRRZ - -RITB/AF
EEERARAR (FTER) NEE -k
ERBABDFRTESRBL LIRS

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

29



30

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EFNEREEERE

Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 45, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by the
Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan Tian
Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance director
of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd from 1997 to
1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang Investment Co.
Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He joined our Group
in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian ShiFang until 2008
when he became the head of finance of Olympia Media, and,
subsequently, vice president of finance of China TopReach Inc.
in 2009, and was appointed as Director of our Company on 20
December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio and Television
University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience from his
work with the overall financial operations of our Group and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group on 9 June
2014. He obtained a bachelor's degree in management from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (online education) in

financial management in January 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wei Dong, aged 50, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed as our Director on 1 April 2015. He is currently
served as the managing director of Xiamen Siruite Business
Ltd. (BPIETRAS BB EABRAT),

with effective since January 1 2014. From January 2010 to

Consulting Co., a position
October 2017, he served as the managing director of Shenzhen
China Science & Kingwin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. He served as
the deputy director of business of Shenzhen China Science &
Merchants Capital Management Group Co., Ltd., from January
2003 to December 2009. From March 1996 to December 2012,
Mr. Chen held the position as an assistant general manager of &
FIZERI B 4E B BR/A B (Xiamen Huamin Packaging Co., Ltd.). From
December 2013 to November 2018, He has served as the general
manager of China Science & Kingwin Investment Management
Limited. In addition, he also had approximately six years of
experience working in the Local Taxation Bureau of Pingyu County,
Henan Province. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor’s degree from the
College of Online Education (now known as College of Continuing
Education) of the Xiamen University in China in 2006, and has
been enrolled in the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme of School of Management of the Xiamen University

since September 2009.
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Ms. Chen Min, aged 50, is a non-executive Director. She
graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in arts in June 1993 and a master’'s degree
in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June 2002.
She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising in
theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in June
2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching posts
at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian Normal
University between September 1993 and May 2007 and has been
an associate professor of drama literature at the Central Academy
of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served as a secretary
and a member of council of the China Branch of The International
Association of Theatre Critics and a member of the expert panel
of academic degrees and graduate education of the Ministry of
Education of the PRC since May 2007. She was appointed as our
Director on 20 December 2011. Ms. Chen is the sister of Mr. Chen

Zhi, an executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 73, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman, and later chairman,
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper

industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry, aged 51, is an independent non-

executive Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8
November 2010. Mr. Wong took some senior positions, by serving
as the finance directors and the internal audit director, for some
multinationals, including United States and Hong Kong listed
companies engaged in fast-moving consumables, real estates,
shopping malls operation and media industry. Prior to that,
Mr. Wong had worked for two international accounting firms,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr.
Wong graduated from City University in Hong Kong in 1993 with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in electronic commerce from the Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as a certified internal auditor.
Mr. Wong has accumulated more than 26 years in financing,
internal controls and corporate governance experience. Since
March 2020, Mr. Wong has been an independent non-executive
director of Raffles Interior Limited (stock code: 1376), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Since June 2020, Mr. Wong has
been the chief financial officer of Meten Edtex Group Ltd (NASAQ:
Metx), a company listed in NASDAQ.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.

since September 2002.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 46, is our company secretary. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 20 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Xinjiang Tianye Water Saving Irrigation System Company Limited
(stock code: 840), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”). The Group has been

“Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the

focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses
by consolidating with cultural media and film media businesses in

PRC, and diversifying into tourism and integrated developments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 101 to 102.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 and proposed that

loss for the year be retained.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of

this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Financial
Highlights and Summary” section on pages 5 to 6 of this annual

report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 27 May 2021 to Monday, 31 May 2021, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered.
To determine eligibility to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30

p.m. on Wednesday, 26 May 2021.

Upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 10 April
2019 (Hong Kong time), the board lot size for trading in the
Shares will be changed from 1,000 Existing Shares to 10,000 New

Shares each.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Subscription of 151,519,806 shares at HK$0.101
between June and July 2020

As announced by the Company on 16 June 2020, the Company
entered into a subscriptions agreements dated 16 June 2020
with two subscribers in relation to the subscriptions by them
of 151,519,806 ordinary shares of the Company (representing
16.7% of the issued shared of the Company as enlarged by
the subscriptions) at the subscriptions price of HK$0.101.
The subscriptions was carried out under the general mandate
approved by the Company’s shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 24 May 2019. Completion of the subscriptions
took place on 10 July 2020, whereby 151,519,806 ordinary shares

of the Company were allotted and issued to the two subscribers.
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The gross and net proceeds from the subscriptions amounted
to approximately HK$15.30 million and HK$15.15 million,
respectively. It was the intention of the Company to apply the net
proceeds from the subscription for general working capital of the
Group. As at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$11.42 million
was utilized for general working capital of the Group as intended,

including salaries and emoluments and rental expenses.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year of 2020, the Group had acquired property, plant

and equipment of approximately RMB1.6 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2020 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association or the bye-laws of the Company (the “Articles” or the
"Bye-laws"), or the laws of the Cayman Islands or Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has no reserve available

for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations have been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2020, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 44.8% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 31% of the Group's total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2020 attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 50.3% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 34.9% of the Group's

total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in

the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group has complied, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Zhi, Chairman and chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan
(appointed on 20 December 20711)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Chen Wei Dong
(appointed on 1 April 2015)
Ms. Chen Min
(appointed on 20 December 20711)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Cai Jian Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 34.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, and Mr. Cai Jian Quan a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months’ notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for
non-executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the independent non-executive Director has been
appointed by the Company for a term of three years and shall be
terminable by either party by giving not less than one month prior

notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 41 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2020 were within

the following bands:
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Nil to HK$500,000
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

)
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Total: 4m

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN
OR DEBT SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Other than the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by written resolutions
of its shareholders on 26 February 2010 and the post-IPO share
option scheme of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the written resolutions of its shareholders
on 8 November 2010, at no time during the year of 2020 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate. The

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme lapsed in November 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save and except the Convertible Bonds held by TopBig
International (a wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi), no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 8 November 2010, the Company adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to (i) any full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or

any subsidiaries (each an “Eligible Person”).

The Board may, at any time within 10 years after the date of
approval of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, make an offer
to grant options to any Eligible Person. The Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 8 November
2010 up to 7 November 2020. The subscription price for shares
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall be at

least the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on

which such offer is made; or

(i)  the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date, i.e. 73,216,512 shares (prior to the Capital
Reorganisation), without prior approval from the shareholders
of the Company. The maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted, and
yet to be exercised, under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit

is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their associates, in any 12-month period (i) represent in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue,
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of option must be approved by

the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.
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The amount payable on acceptance of an option is RMB1.00. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
of grant of the relevant option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before the exercise of the option

except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Up to 31 December 2020, no share option had been granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
report, the number of shares available under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 18,304,128 Shares (as adjusted by the Capital
Reorganisation), representing approximately 2.4% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue. The Post-IPO Share

Option Scheme lapsed in November 2020.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS SUBSCRIPTION

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International
Development Limited (“TopBig International”), a wholly
Chen Zhi,

and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the

owned company by Mr. the Executive Director
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% convertible bonds
(the "Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$250,000,000 (equivalent to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.

Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).
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The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds (The “Conversion Shares”)
shall be allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
specific mandate granted by the independent shareholders of the
Company to the Directors at an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 8 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the
“Share(s)") of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Chen Zhi (an executive director of the Company)
was deemed to be interested in 1,083,265,340 Shares
and underlying Shares, comprising (i) 1,758,164 Shares
directly held by him; (ii) 225,440,510 Shares held by
TopBig International Development Limited (“TopBig
International”), a controlled corporation which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Chen Zhi; and (iii) 856,066,666 underlying
Shares attributable to the conversion right attaching to
convertible bonds issued by the Company held by TopBig

International.

(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of
909,118,836 issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:

T -

(1) ZXRABDPTEETREELEHEBRAR
1,083,265,340% i& 15 K 18 BA BZ 15
FEREZ BRE(IBEEEFAN
1,758,164 K%M ;(INVBE2EHES
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(TR FEPR) FEAEM225,440,510
I 5 (i A FRERFAENAA G
BTN R ESEN 2 SR ET E
15856,066,666 X RRIAZ 17 °
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
e, BB 81 tEEtE RNBE #HEHOEIL
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 1,081,507,176 118.96%
F TR BmfBEE (1)
Shi Jianxiang Beneficial Owner 46,712,500 5.14%
T A BEmfiBEE
Chen Rong Interest of controlled 39,335,004 4.33%

corporation (Note 2)

B 1A NEZEEEEN#ER (1E2)
Happy Day Development Ltd. Beneficial owner (Note 2) 39,335,004 4.33%

Happy Day Development Ltd.

BEmsER A (f5E2)
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Notes:

(1) TopBig International is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Mr.
Chen Zhi, an executive Director. TopBig International was deemed
to be interested in 1,081,507,176 Shares and underlying Shares,
comprising (i) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig International; and
(i) 856,066,666 underlying Shares attributable to the conversion
right attaching to convertible bonds issued by the Company held by

TopBig International..

(2)  Based on disclosure of interest filings, Happy Day Development Ltd.

is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Chen Rong.

(3)  The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of 909,118,836
issued Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2020.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
which will be regarded as continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and subject to the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms below has the same meanings as those defined

in the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERT

() BFERAHRATEEIMRILELRE
BEZZSESNEIE - FFEBEERA P
1,081,507,176F& i 10 R ABRAR D PR #
@ BIE)A TR H 2225,440,5108 5%
1;3; ()R FEEFENERATZEITHA R
B (5 %5 B T =~ 1A HEF) FE(5856,066,666 1% 18
RARRIA ©

(2) IREREEFEBRINE > Happy Day Development
Ltd 2—HHMREEEEENSEGIAR -

(3) BNLEZDNERARABDNR_Z2ZFA+
B=4+—H22909,118,836R B & 1Tk 5t
%O

BRAXPIIBEEIN RZBE_ZEF+A
=t+—B FAATEEENSHEEAEMAL
(BFRERFRSITHABRIN BALE
RIRIEE S RAEFRGIEI36FEARTAREFE
B9 2 50 B9 A5 2 B AR 199 B A8 R AR 17 1 2 30 ¢

)

RERER S
AABEFT I T XA BIRE £ RAG R
AFEMER R UL AYT LHRAIE T mAE
THRBRENS S BIESERE AT
XHMEAARABRRERMRENERE
Eo

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

47



48

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERT

The Structure Contracts

Background

Fuzhou ShiFangCe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (“Original WFOE"),
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to 24 December 2015, entered into (a) structured contracts
(the “Internet Structured Contracts”) to enable the Group to
capture the economic benefits of and obtain the effective control
over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Internet Opco” or “Beijing BaiChuanDuKe"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Internet Opco Group”); and (b) structured
contracts (the “Publishing Structured Contracts”) to enable
the Group to capture the economic benefits of and obtain the
effective control over Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd ("Publishing Opco” or “Beijing HongXinTu”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively, the “Publishing Opco Group”).

Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment jointly promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC, foreign investors are (i) prohibited from investing in
news websites and online publication services; and (ii) restricted
from investing in more than 50% controlling stake in value-
added telecommunication and printing of publications. At the
time of the entering into of the Internet Structured Contracts
and the Publishing Structured Contracts, the Company could
not directly acquire the equity interest in Internet Opco and the
controlling equity interest in Publishing Opco. Therefore, the
Company entered into the Internet Structured Contracts and the
Publishing Structured Contracts to capture the economic benefits
of and obtain the effective control over the Internet Opco and the

Publishing Opco.
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On 17 December 2015, in anticipation of the imminent disposal
of Original WFOE by the Group to an independent third party,
the Internet Structured Contracts were novated from Original
WFOE to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (“New WFOE" or
“Fuzhou DingCe"). With the disposal by the Group of its equity
interests in Original WFOE, the Group ceased to be interested in
the Publishing Structured Contracts or the Publishing Opco Group.
With the novation of the Internet Structured Contracts to New
WFQOE, the Group continues to consolidate the financial results of
the Internet Opco Group through the contractual arrangements

under the Internet Structured Contracts.

Internet Opco and Internet Opco Shareholders

Internet Opco is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB1 million
and principally engaged in value-added telecommunication
business, news websites, online publication services and printing
of publications. Internet Opco Group holds a Permit for Internet
Publication (B Bt 48 tH AR 57 AI58) ,
added Telecommunication Business (12185 £ #&= o] %)
and an Operation Permit for News Publication Printing (¥ & & bz
YIENRI AR & 5o 58) .

an Operation Permit for Value-

The registered capital of Internet Opco is registered as to 60%
in the name of Zheng Bo Ling (“Zheng”) and 40% in the name
of Xu Kai Ning (“Xu”, and together with Zheng, collectively the

“Internet Opco Shareholders”).
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Reasons for the entering into of the Internet Structured
Contracts

The principal reasons for the entering into of the Internet
Structured Contracts were (a) to establish a contractual position
which allows the economic benefits of the businesses and
operations of the Internet Opco Group to flow to the Group; (b)
through the control of the right of nomination of directors of
Internet Opco, to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of the Internet Opco
Group which in turn ensure due implementation of the Internet
Structured Contracts; (c) to prevent any possible leakage of assets
to the Internet Opco Shareholders; and (d) to enable the Group to
acquire the equity interest of the Internet Opco at an agreed price,
which was fixed as a matter of relatively nominal sums and being

the lowest prices permissible under PRC law.

Save for the foreign investment restrictions described above, the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts

are not related to any other regulations or requirements.

Key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts
In the summary table below, we set out the current status and the

key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts:

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: ZZ—RF+=“8++tH

Loan Agreement

it #

S BEMERESONIER

SIUEMBRBENNEIEERT (a)EIL—
BEAMA FERMAZEELATEREBR
SEMNEEMNEZBURATER ;(b)EBE
HEMEEEASDESNRERE B BR
REREHEMRAEEATEENER &
BRYBERR EMEFRZABTEBAER
BEN (OMLEEERNEERNERRET BB
MEEABRRNEBER ; R(AOEFEEA#Z
WMEBH RBHLENEEE  PEAR
TAFHNREER) BAEMEZEATNR
o

BRI RERSI I BEERBEEAT
BYE A9 L2 BE BT (AT E AR 1) 50 AR E #RE

BEEHRARB SN EEZIRR
TRMIEMBERBSHNERR T REER

= -
TA -

Parties: New Wfoe (as lender), Zheng and Xu (as borrowers)

SIS LASNEBERE (EREMA) » BREF (FRERA)

Loan sum: RMB600,000 (for Zheng) and RMB400,000 (for Xu)
B - AR ®600,0007T (8F) K AR%400,0007T (5F)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated

by notice by New Wfoe

FH 105 BRI EBELERELBNR L SHEDERERCE
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Equity Pledge
Agreement

RREE R0

Voting Right Proxy
Agreement

BREERARZEHE
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No early repayment: Each of Zheng and Xu is not permitted to repay any loan without prior
written consent of New Wfoe.

TRREEEN  BRAUIATEREMII BBECXSRAETARE TEEERER-

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: ZZ—HF+="8++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as pledgors), New Wfoe (as pledgee), Internet Opco
TR (B RE (FAERA) W EBEELE (FAKRIBA) ERAEERR

Pledged assets: 60% equity interest in Internet Opco (by Zheng), 40% equity interest in
Internet Opco (by Xu)
BIREE  EHAEENT0%RIE (MBER)  EHMEAEENTI0%KE (BFFER)

Guaranteed obligations: To guarantee the repayment of the loans under the Loan Agreement
and the payment of the service fees under the Service Agreement.

BREMT  EREESRHBE THERRITRF HE THRFE -

Dividends: Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, New Wfoe is entitled to all of the
benefits arising from the pledged equity interests including dividends.

R IREREERGZ NI EBECEXARISHAECERREELNN = (BEFER
B) e

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —E—HF+-8B++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as appointers), New Wfoe (as appointee), Internet Opco

IR I BREF (FREREN CWIINEBRELE (FAEEEAN) EREEERT
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Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreement

BEEZRBEEGZ

Service Agreement

AR 75 17 5

Power granted: Each of Zheng and Xu granted to New Wfoe and its designee(s) the power to
exercise all relevant voting rights in Internet Opco including but not limited to those relating
to: (i) the amendment of company constitution; (ii) the appointment, election or dismissal
of the directors, supervisors or senior management; (iii) the transfer or disposal of all or part
of the equity interest in Internet Opco; (iv) the increase or reduction of capital, other capital
reorganization, dissolution or liquidation of Internet Opco: and (v) the right to inspect all
documents and information of Internet Opco.

FRE#E)) BERAZRERAMIMSBECEREEREREITHREMASELSFMBHERAK
RENES BREEAERALTEEMRARE ((METRRAER (NEE ERURERES
RENSREERE (INVEBNEELHESELBIFMA IR ;(iv)IE H0 8¢ HI R B B4
SERANES HitRAEH BHEUEE  RVEREBMBEERASMA X RER
HER]

Restriction on equity transfer: None of Zheng nor Xu may transfer all or any part of their
equity interest in Internet Opco without the prior written consent of New Wfoe.
REEZERG  BRAOGFTEEREHIIBECERFAETHRAE TEERENEMAE
BERINE MRS D RE -

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —E—HF+-_8A++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as grantors), New Wfoe (as grantee), Internet Opco

J#77  BREF ((FRREAN I EBELE (FRERAN  EREZEERHT

Option: Each of Zheng and Xu irrevocably granted to New Wfoe or its designee(s) an
exclusive option to purchase, at any time if and when permitted under PRC laws, all or part
of their equity interests in Internet Opco at the agreed price, being the higher of (i) RMB1
million; and (ii) the lowest price permissible under PRC laws.

EER  BLRHAKZETUHEMEMIEEECERNHIEREREBEZBEE > LU H
BlE R AFFRVEREREANRBEESE BIOWARBIBE T ; R()PEDERE T AFFHNREER
MEFPHNRSE) BERSNERAEEQATNE I NEMBOIRE-

Date: 17 December 2015
HE: —Z2—HF+"_8B++tH

Parties: New Wfoe (as consultant) and Internet Opco (as appointer)

SIMF D ESNEEE R E ((FRER) KEMMAEERT ((FREEN)
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Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe.
FH 105 RIEWIMIMNEBRE CEZELBANR L SRIBEEHREREE-

Scope of services: New Wfoe agreed to provide to Internet Opco consulting services including
(i) market research; (ii) business development and market consultation; (iii) consulting services
in respect of labor matters; (iv) construction and maintenance of information networks and

network security; (v) technical support for software and technology; and (vi) other services in

relation to its business operations.
IRFFHEE : FMIMEEECERBEREHESE
BRRMSES (i)B S HHNEARE

ANEHRMAMIRT > BEOTHIHME ;(1)FH
ERMAEEEMER PR LE VR KRR

(i)
KRk Ry EBMAEEE QR EFLEENE MRS -

Service fees: The service fees are according to the nature of the service content and time

spent based on market price.

BBE  REERRBRBASHERPMERBKRTESE

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

The Internet Structured Contract has not been unwound up
to the date of this report. The Company does not intend to
unwind any Internet Structured Contract unless and until the
foreign investment restriction relating to ownership of the equity
interest in Internet Opcos is lifted. When the foreign investment
restriction is lifted, the Company intends to exercise its exclusive
purchase right under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement
to acquire the entire equity interest in Internet Opco, so that
the Company can control the Internet Opco Group through the
direct shareholding relationship rather than through the Internet

Structured Contracts.

HWIHRBEH
BEFTRSHH EBRERB SO R
H-RFREEREMEEELTRENEE
ERAEMBIINERERBWEE SRIEQ
AEEHHEEMERBEN -HEIIBKRE
REREE 2R ARTRENRBRIESE
BERWZ THBEREERER WEEH
MEEARNEERE  REAATENS
BEEFREGMIIFEMERBSNEGE
BMEEEATER-
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Accounting policies and financial information

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the Company, its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary. Fuzhou
DingCe (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Internet Structured Contracts with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
whereby Fuzhou DingCe provides consulting services to Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a substantial portion
of the economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe; (2) exercise
effective control over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an
exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests
in Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements under
the Internet Structured Contracts, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe is a
structured entity and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial

statements”.

When assessing whether to combine a structured entity, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including whether (1) the
activities of the structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business needs so that the
Group obtains the benefits from the structured entity’s operations,
(2) the Group has decision-making powers to obtain the majority
of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains the majority of the benefits
of the activities of the structured entity, and (4) the Group retains
the majority of the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities. The Group
consolidates a structured entity if an assessment of the relevant
factors indicates that it controls the structured entity. Based on the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts,
the Company consolidated the results, assets and liabilities of
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.
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PRC laws strictly prohibits foreign investment in, and ownership
of, companies engaging in news websites and online publication
services, and place significant restrictions on foreign investment
in, and ownership of, companies engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business (Chinese parties as controlling
shareholders) and printing of publications (Chinese parties as
controlling shareholders). The Company is considered as a foreign-
invested enterprise, and is required to comply with the PRC laws
and regulations applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Due
to such restrictions, the Company are not permitted to have
and does not have direct ownership of any interest in Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe as Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, together with its
subsidiaries, holds a Permit for Internet Publication (B B#48 kR
FFP]EE), an Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (J& (B B (5 ¥ #5548 = 5T 0] 5%) and an Operation Permit for
News Publication Printing (BT H AR EDRI &L & 55 A1 5%) . Instead,
the Company conducts the above operations in China principally
through contractual arrangements among its subsidiary Fuzhou
DingCe on the one hand, and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its
shareholders, on the other. These contractual arrangements permit
the financial results of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to be consolidated
with and effectively all of the economic benefits of its business to
be transferred to Fuzhou DingCe. The contractual arrangement is
not related to any regulations other than the restriction on foreign

investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated
from the printing and online services businesses through Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe was RMB4.1 million and nil (2019: RMB4.4
million and nil) respectively, which accounted for 3.3% and 0%
of total revenue (2019: 3.6% and 0%) of the total revenue; and
the assets of Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses
amounted to RMB28.7 million (2019: RMB25.7 million). As
Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses have not
contributed any significant profit to the Group in the past, Beijing
BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses were insignificant
to the Group respectively, of total revenue. The Company relied
on and expects to continue to rely on contractual arrangements
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders to operate the
printing and online services business components in China. The
PRC legal advisor has advised the Company that the contractual
arrangements are in compliance with and enforceable under the
relevant PRC laws. However, there exist uncertainties regarding
the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations
regarding the performance and enforcement of such contractual
arrangements. As such, there can be no assurance that the
relevant PRC regulatory authorities will not, in the future,
determine that the contractual arrangements are in breach of
applicable PRC laws. If the contractual arrangements are found
to be in breach of any existing or future PRC laws, the relevant
PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such violations, including revoking the business and
operating licenses held by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, restricting or
prohibiting any transactions between the Company and Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, imposing penalties or other requirements with
which the Company may not be able to comply, or requiring
the Company to restructure the relevant ownership, control or
operating structure of the Company or its business. The imposition
of any of these penalties or requirements could result in a material
and adverse effect on its business, and could even result in us
being required to cease the printing and online services businesses

completely.
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In addition to the possibility of administrative penalties or other
requirements being imposed upon us due to the relationships
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders, the Company
may not be able to effectively enforce such contractual
relationships in a cost-effective manner or at all. Under the current
contractual arrangements, if Beijing BaiChuanDuKe or any of
their shareholders fails to perform their respective obligations
under these contractual arrangements, or are required to incur
substantial costs to do so, the Company may be forced to incur
substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements
or to rely on PRC law to obtain remedies, including specific
performance or damages, and we may not be successful in
obtaining such remedies or obtaining such remedies might be cost
prohibitive. In the event the Company is unable to enforce these
contractual arrangements, its business, financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. and Guizhou ShiFang Printing
Co., Ltd, which are subsidiaries of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently hold Operation Permits for News Publication Printing G&f
S ) bl 40 BN R 48 & 5 T 58)
& Technology Co., Ltd.,
currently holds a Permit for Internet Publication (& B 48t A 5F 7]
£8)and a Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (B EEBEXBHBLEFAI:
www.duk.cn. Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding
SEXES
by NDRC and MOFCOM, news websites and online publication

Xiamen DuKe Information Science

a subsidiary of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,

%) for the operation of

Foreign Investment (JpiE R & B %) jointly promulgated
services are classified as industries in which foreign investors are
prohibited from investing, and value-added telecommunication
business (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) and printing
of publications (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) is
classified as an industry in which foreign investors are restricted
from investing. These views have been confirmed by our PRC legal

advisor.
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's financial results are consolidated into
the Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing
connected transactions.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, in relation to the transactions
regarding Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, the Company has applied
for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict
compliance with the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements with fixed
term of no more than three years requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long as the

Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
In accordance with the relevant Structured Contracts, no dividends

or other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to

their shareholders.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

Structure Contracts and the above continuing connected

transactions.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive

Directors:

(i)

(iii)

the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that
the revenue generated by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly retained by

the Group;

the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
is no available comparison, on terms that are no less
favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent

third parties;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to their shareholders; and
any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
Company during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Company are
concerned and in the interests of our shareholders as a

whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has reported the results and their work
to the Board, confirming that the transaction has received the
approval of the Directors, has been entered into in accordance
with the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to its

Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International (a
wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% Convertible Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000). The subscription was completed on 23 April

2019.

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.
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Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.24 per conversion share, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into up to 1,041,666,666 shares (on
the basis of consolidated shares after the Capital Reorganisation

becoming effective).

The gross and net proceeds from the subscription was
approximately HK$250 million and HK$245 million respectively.
At the time of subscription, it was the intention of the Company
to apply the net proceeds from the subscription as to: (a)
approximately HK$104 million for repaying the principal and
accrued interest on the HK$100 million loan facility previously
granted by TopBig International; (b) approximately HK$107.1
million for early redemption of the promissory notes issued as
consideration for the Supreme Glory acquisition and the accrued
interest thereon; and (c) approximately HK$33.9 million for the
Group's general expenses such as salaries, rental expenses and
professional fees. All proceeds from the subscription were utilized

as intended during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Convertible Bonds and the new Shares to be issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall be allotted and issued
by the Company pursuant to the specific mandate granted by the
independent shareholders of the Company to the Directors at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 8 March
2019.
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Conversion of convertible bonds

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.24 per Share, 185,600,000
Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) were allotted and issued by the
Company to TopBig International on 21 May 2019 (the “Partial
Conversion”).. As a result of the Partial Conversion, the issued
share capital of the Company has increased from 571,999,030
Shares to 757,599,030 Shares. The Conversion Shares rank
pari passu with all the existing Shares in issue as at the date of
allotment and among themselves in all respects. The 185,600,000
Conversion Shares represent: (a) approximately 32.45% of the
issued share capital immediately before the Partial Conversion;
and (b) approximately 24.50% of the issued share capital as

enlarged by the Partial Conversion.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDER

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to give their opinions regarding the environmental,

social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with

safety working environments to employees.
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The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is available
on the Company’s website (www.shifangholding.com) and on the

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Executive Director (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hong Kong
8 April 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Apart from the corporate governance aspect, which will be further
discussed in this report below, the Company has prepared and
published its first environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which
sets out information regarding the year from 1 January to 31
December 2020, which is available on the Company’s website
(www.shifangholding.com) and on the website of the Stock

Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
Set out below the corporate governance principles and the

practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review,
the position of chairman was vacated before 9 October 2019,
while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of chairman and CEO and/
or the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken, and that either the
overlap of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship
should not impair the balance of power and authority between

the Board and the management.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

At the date of this report, the Board comprises 7 Directors,
of which two are executive Directors, two are non-executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The
Composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having extensive knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and development of the Group. The
biographies of all Directors are set out on pages 26 to 30 of this
annual report. Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
other financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships among members of the Board.
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The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which includes but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee made an annual review on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, made
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
under review, the position of chairman was vacated before 9
October 2019, while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman
and the CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of Chairman and CEO and/or
the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers that
the sufficient measures had been taken and that either the overlap
of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board

and the management.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.

Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will be provided to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions

reached.

EEERRS

BIENTESE

AABBEBT EHRAEII0MNF FE=H
BIFRTES HEFEAM=22Z—U
L XRATNERERBIUFATEEZREL
FE%EE‘J%%J31|m$tﬂﬁﬂ’lﬁé’fﬂﬂﬂ’\]$ﬁﬁﬁfn°

EREHBR ESeRA2RBBIIENT
EEHUEEIIAL

EEgER
ARNBBRIVBROTUREEZT TR NES
BT—X BEREERTEREMEERTE

B %E%$EEEMEﬁ%E—&F E=
AIRDTOBEDETFTES UHERERR
HE-BZESFRKERTEARBRITERER
BITERT MEFEBRB2HEIRANER
NTETHR - BEFELERME GRS
ROFACHEFEERNZERMFLAR
o

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

67



68

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

During the year, the Board convened 1 shareholders’ general
meetings, 5 board meetings, 4 Audit Committee meetings, 1

Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee

FREFEDHBEER-—RBRRRE AR
EFETR WUREREZEETEH  —RFHM
ZEgERKk—ANRLZEGER -EHE

meeting respectively. The attendance of individual Directors at ERREREUREETT BEZEE T Fil
general meetings and meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, ZEERIRLEZEGEEZNHERTT !
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee is as
follows:
Meeting attended/held
HE/ BTEERY
Shareholders’

general Audit Remuneration  Nomination

meeting Board Committee Committee Committee

BRAS 528 BKZ8Y HWEEE RL%ZES
Executive Directors W‘Tﬁ?
Chen Zhi (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as Chief & (THAEH) (FZF-NE

Executive Officer of 9 October 2019) +ﬁﬂ5@§&% THEF) 1 5 NATEA  NATER  NATER

Yu Shi Quan (Chief Financial Officer) KFE (BEYEE) 1 5 N/A R N/A B N/A R
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Chen Wei Dong RER 0 5  NATER  NATER  NATER
Chen Min R 0 5 NATER  NATER  NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTESE
Wong Heung Ming, Henry =L 1 5 4 1 1
Zhou Chang Ren BEL 0 5 4 1 N/A R
Cai Jian Quan B 0 5 4 NATER 1

All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company

secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the %o

A EE

PREEEAESHEBRBERNER -
AABHNRBDWERHENT R MR
ARMEAENEFREEFTIXMHK

CED

Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables

risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company'’s strategic aims, ensuring that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and

(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.

The Directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s projections and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation performance,
believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available
to the Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fail due. Accordingly,
the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements set out in the audited financial
statements on pages 99 to 244 of this annual report on a going

concern basis.
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Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of Directors

All Directors of the Board served in office during the year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their
understanding and commit to high standards of corporate
governance. The Executive Director brings his perspectives
to the Board through his deep understanding of the Group’s
business. The Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge
of capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable continuous
professional development programmes for all Directors to hone

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group’s
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the vyear, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. A summary of
training recovered by Directors for the year ended 31 December

2020 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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follow:
Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development
and other
relevant topics
BRATEES
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2020 no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, which may be terminated by not less than six months’
notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for non-
executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the other.
The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than one month prior notice in writing. The Directors have
power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person
to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. In accordance
with the Articles or Bye-laws of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Relationships and associations among the Directors

Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save as disclosed,
there was no relationship between members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
dissenting views expressed by the Directors, which should
be made available to all Directors for inspection. She is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the
intended dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board
committees. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to
send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities by the directors of the Company.
Specific enquiries have been made with all the incumbent
directors of the Company and all of them confirmed and declared
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended to 31 December 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Cai Jianquan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor
- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’'s annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control and
risk management systems.

- To review the financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which being independent

namely

non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(c) reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
Mr. Chen Zhi, and Mr.

Wong Heung Ming, the majority of which being independent

namely Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Chairman),

non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base on
the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the year:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for re-election at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee had performed their primary duties to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including its diversity, based on a
range of perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and requirements, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills,

Committee considered that the current composition of the Board

knowledge and regional experience. The Nomination

is balanced in terms of diversity and is able to meet the objectives
of the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors” and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PwC as the Group’s external auditor. The
statement by PwC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 85

to 98 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
paid or payable to PwC for audit services and non-audit services
amounted to RMB3,821,000 (2019: RMB4,197,000) and nil (2019:

nil) respectively.

EEERRS

B R ZH
EERRBMMMBRR]NEE

EFFRRSREERRTIATEAE_T
TE+_R=+—RHLEENYHBRE M
MBRREABRATFHNREART A E
B HR R R ERBEER Rk LT RR
WKBRE-EFTEEHT B kE2EM
EVNFEBERRTHRS HEtRESRHLQS

EHRARENEMMY FHIRESFE-

FEBCEERIRKEESHMEHTMAE
EEIER L BN o BB BOK B G STENSE BT
MEARRREFAEBGHYBRENER
BEHNBRH N A FRFSEIBENBIZ
HENHE A o

REE_Z-_ZE+_B=+—HIEEE"
MBZBRBRIFEZRFMENNELES
RKEGSHMEZMNWNELNAARE
3,821,0005C (ZE— % . AKE®4,197,000
7T RARBET (ZZE—NAF: ARKBE

50

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

79



80

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing their
design, operational adequacy, and effectiveness on an ongoing
basis to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The Board engaged an internal audit team which
carries out the analysis and independent assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Board. Review of
the Group’s internal controls cover major financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved by the
Audit Committee. Saved as disclosed below, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the
Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the Group's

internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the overlap of chairman and CEO
and/or the vacancy of chairmanship may affect the operations of
the Company. The Board has met regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken and the overlap of
chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and

the management.
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Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board considered the following corporate

governance matters:
(i)  review of the compliance with the CG Code; and
(i)  review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and

risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders
and investors informed of its business performance and strategies
by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure policy which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all shareholders
equal access to such information. The Company also publishes all
documents on the Company’'s website at www.shifangholding.

com.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.
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Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders

of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the

mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the CG
Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a)

Convening of general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that
such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.

EEERRS

UTHAEREH-_E—Z_FMNA—HEEN
NEEEBTRBORMAFIMERERERT
RENKTABRRETEIEGE-

(a)

ERRERBARRAE

RRRETBRE—BRAANLEARTES
ERERMERRRRDNREBNEEMW
FRN(HEATLETERSERE) &
EMEREESEERNBERTERM
EHERAVRAEEN THIEHE
RPUALTRZ > BRHEERPIALRIE
REREHRFEAEREATREX
ELERENERT/EREFT DR +2
— o RRARENAEEA—LERAE
BRINARBRR (RERLBA) BERQ
ANEBNIENERN (HEARF L
BEIBNER EXMEEXESEHE
KHBRTAR EEERAVNBAEG
B THREHERNHALRE KR
HERNWATIRERXREZEREREAFER
BERARTRRAG ERENEATH
ERERDR 73—

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

83



84

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within further 2 months of the deposit
of such requisites, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a

Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 or the bye-laws of the Company.
However, Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution
may request the Company to convene an special general
meeting following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's
website.

(c) Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents. The New Memorandum
of Continuance and Bye-Laws was adopted conditionally at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held at 25 February 2019 with
effect from the date of continuance of the Company under the
laws of Bermuda.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of ShiFang Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 99 to 244, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of RMB74,539,000 and a net cash used in operating activities
of RMB6,339,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020,
while the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB32,728,000 as at the same date. These conditions, along
with other matters as described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ERHVER

HPIERE(RARES ERDETES - KT
ZEE T AENEEEESTKRS ZHER
B M BREAENEE BOPIFEE—
pdpa

HPIEE RFFMESHES RELETER
BEMSRMANBAEREHER-

‘i
REERSAMEXIRTESTERMI(EE
gtenEfETR) CITE®IERTRL) - &
MBI S£EE TEBRTERTRFNH
thEXEREEE

BFEEERMNERTHEML

BP@EAmMEIaHBERRNE2.1 B&
EE&aE T2 ZF+_A=+—HILFE
NESFEHEERARIKT4,539,0007T & EE
IR M FEEARE6,339,0007  MHRE
H E£ENTHEEBLEERHEEAR
#532,728,0007cc ZEEH R IEREREME
By e HMBRERME21FE > RBEX
BEATHEM HAfeg¥H BE£ERELE
WEENERERRE RANREXRERIE
EIEFHET -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
o Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible
assets

o Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale
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B2 MR S

Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Impairment assessment of gooadwill and other intangible assets

BB RAMBELEE B EFE

Refer to note 2.9 (Accounting policies), note 4(a) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 9
(Intangible assets) to the consolidated financial statements.
B2EAHMBHRERN 2.9 (FEE) ki) (FEEg
sHlst KRR RMist9 (MEEE) o

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of
goodwill and other intangible assets were approximately
RMB11,208,000 and RMB212,146,000, respectively before
the provision for impairment.
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The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate an indicator of impairment of
goodwill. For other intangible assets, impairment test is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate an indicator of impairment.
EEESFRABERNE ANELEEHHERETETHE
BREFREET REMBLEEMS  RELEEHHIB
MEEBETBESREETRERNR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E AR ERAREEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s

impairment assessment included:

BRI REEBRENGENEFERE

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;
EBIUSEEMESEE
ETHE

BN KRB

Evaluating management’s assessment on
identification of CGU;

T EEEH N IBEEEEEUER 2T
=

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used based on our
industry knowledge and relevant market
practice;

B AFIRYIT = F 8 f2 48 B T 35 18 A1
FRRGERZRESEE
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

B2 MRS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E A RERREEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEZER BTG (B

The Group has performed impairment assessments to
compare the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units (“CGUs"”) to which these assets belong, based on
discounted cash flow projections using fair value less costs
of disposal (“FVLCD") or value in use (“VIU") calculations,
to their carrying amounts. The key assumptions used in the
valuation included, likelihood of occurrence for the possible
outcomes for the litigation (Note 38), adjusted land unit
rate, discount rate, revenue generated from operation,
revenue growth rate and terminal growth rate. Based on
the impairment tests performed, impairment charge of
RMB21,546,000 was recognised against intangible assets for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

EEEEANFRRBESREFAR ERRANERLERATE
REBESENG A RS EEMRB RS EL B
WA W EMEEHE EREE B ETRET o HERAE
ERROEFDBAIEERBELE TN (H5E38) ~KLHE
THEBUBR -FTRX - EEELE 2 Wa - WamERERK
ABER-HERMETZABAR BE_T_TF+_4
=+ -HIEFERRETLEEREER ARK21,546,000

JT ©

(iv)

(iv)

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology adopted and the reasonableness
of key assumptions used in determining the
recoverable amount with the involvement of
our internal valuation expert;
RPNAMBEEERSEFLGEE T KREE
BEFMERMEERZNBELRAER T ER
HHEEM;

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation by
comparing assumptions such as adjusted
land unit rate, discount rate, revenue
generated from operation, revenue growth
rate and terminal growth rate against the
approved budget, latest development of
projects, relevant market data and industry
information; and

BRELERABRLMBMUERS RRE LS
EEZWm WEERERKABRREZ
TRREEHERE - BEENLHERNTT
HETSHBRITEER TG ERMRE

ERRESGE K

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
MREEE KM E N EERREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEER BTG (B

We focused on this area due to the significant management (vi) Discussing with management to understand
judgment involved to determine the assumptions used in the and evaluate management’s basis and
impairment. rationale in arriving at the best estimate for
KM HEERENRERBARKSIREREEREY the provision for the right to land lease and
i other assets in the CGU as at 31 December

2020, based on the relevant information
available at the relevant stage of the litigation,
including related legal correspondence,
and the latest development of the legal
proceeding;

(vi) IRIZBSFEAERAREERPIISIVAERE R (B15186
ERRG) UREAREFNENER HEE
BemUTREIHEEEEE _S2 24
+ZB=+—HRTELBUPIHEER
HMEERMNREGLSNEERER ;

(vii) Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external
lawyers;

(vii) SHEBIIIBERANEE ENREFERK
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B2 MRS

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RREEE KM E N EERREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued)

BERAMELEZER BTG (B

(viii)

(viii)

(ix)

(ix)

Discussing with the external lawyers and
obtained the legal opinion from them for
which management relied on in identifying
the magnitude and likelihood of occurrence
for the possible outcomes; and
EASNERTRAD ST AR > I B M ER RTINS B IE
BRI EAERNBEML R EMRMIKREN
ERER K

Considering management'’s sensitivity analysis
with respect to variations of key assumptions
adopted, to evaluate the extent to which
reasonably possible changes, both individually
and in aggregate, would result in material
changes in the assessment on impairment.

ETREEEAMMEMIERIREHOHR
E DM UESIE 178 E AT (G185l K+
F R BE ¥R BT E N ERE SR A L F) -

Based on the above, we found management’s

judgments and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment were supported by available

evidence.
R EXF RASREREFERES RO
R RER BB RESF

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale

BEFFFHEYELLE

Refer to note 2.10 (Accounting policies), note 4(e) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 13
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

FE2HAHMBRRWEE2.10 (FETEE) 5T RS
STt st R fRER) RMizE13 (FIFHEW )

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The net carrying value of the Group's properties
held for sale was RMB24,255,000 as at 31 December 2020.
EEEREETHFLEYE ZSYERREERRAANE
BEERAREETR EEEFFHEYER -T2
F+ZRA=+—HBMREFES ARN24,255,0007T

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
appraise the value of the properties held for sale using the
direct market comparable approach and income approach.
Management assessed the appropriateness of methodologies
and assumptions underlying the valuations performed by the
independent external valuer.

EIRE LB I INEMEER A B E TS BOE R AE
EREHEMENEBE BEB ST GBI EEME
THRERNEBRL ZRBERRESEHE-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E AR ERAREEE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s

judgement and estimates used to determine the

fair value less costs to sell of the Group's properties

held for sale included:

P EEERNEE

EEERFHENENA

RERHERANEEREHE RMESFAARERF S

&

(ii)

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;

BRI LEMESEE B IR
FETHEE

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the
independent external valuer with reference
to the nature and purposes of the Group’s
properties and relevant market practice;

28R BEEYMEMERBRUKERT
BB 6 > & 818 3L EB 14 B BT PR B (1B 5 0%

"HE;

\

fl - So
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale (Continued)

BEEFFFHEYELE (&)

We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgement and estimates used to determine the fair value
less costs to sell and, consequentially, the provision for loss
for the Group’s properties held for sale.
RAFILLERERENEE SEEFFLREYENAR
BREENARALGENGEEGER EEREAREER
FI B R (5t o

B2 MRS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM E A RERREEE

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

Discussing with management the
appropriateness of the selection criteria of
comparable properties and the adjusting
factors used in the independent external
valuer’s valuation under market comparable
approach having regard to the location, size
and nature of the properties;

HEEEN RO LR ERPERER RIE T
SNEBIEERIRIBE R IBLEBUEMYEMLE K
NWNRMEEFBANARRRREAE ;

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation under
income approach, including expected rental
income, growth rate and discount rate,
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and comparing with relevant market
data;
BREBEXRMEEREBRITENAH  TER
BUWACEETEERPTANRERERR (B1EE
HETWA-BEXRFTREX) 26588 I
BT R EUREITHEE ;

Based on the above, we found management’s

judgments and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment were supported by available

evidence.
E bt MBI REFHMT RN EIEE
HET R GBI B RE R IFo

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Hftiz 8
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EEB MR o
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

B2 MRS

FERERZEENEHMBER
A

-
RAXKENTE

REB(RBFADVRBERERBEEMD
EMEHMBRER UHEIAREEHY
BRENBRETFEARNFHERMER
WERERRAFFENRIEGES -

ERECHBBRERE EF88TH &5
BRECENE N TEBRABRTREA
TREEARNER UAERFBEEES
SEER RIFEFTARS EERBENF
IS BB EREMBRIENSE-

ZEEREEEER

BEZEZEEREE EEENMHRS
O
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

B2 MRS

TRREBESEARNANEES > UREE
ENEFREF BENLIIFYE S&EH
REIEHRIN BRI ERER -

FEEEMRAETHRNIGELERIF
ZEtHEStN AR IREN G-

HEERAFBECE S ERNREN
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BEM EMAEERY EEENF
BREENEEEREE - WRELFR
REEERTHEEMS AL EEZRE
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PRERKE - REARNKESE
AZRFEEERIFEREER - HMW
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B BEEEfERELE-

FECHUYBRENEEIERAN &
BNRE SREKRE UREHMBR
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 April 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEERRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
RIE-_ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—E_BF “EBE-NE
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
M5 ARETFT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BRERZE 51,058 90,212
Investment properties BEYE 26,681 S
Right-of-use assets FREEE 24 5,211 7,280
Intangible assets mLEE 9 201,808 216,349
Prepayments, deposits and other ENMHIBE 1w REM
receivables FE W 218 10 80,544 83,638
365,302 397,479
Current assets TEMEE
Biological assets S YE E 11 211 239
Inventories =75 12 894 774
Properties held for sale HIEHEY % 13 24,255 25,386
Financial assets at fair value NAELKIEERAENS
through profit or loss BEE 14 6,564 6,165
Trade receivables — net B EWERIE— 55 15 5,461 9,561
Contract assets — net SHNEBE—FRE 5 3,520 3,744
Prepayments, deposits and aNEHIE - REM
other receivables A ESE] 10 11,513 9,845
Amounts due from related parties FEURREE A Tt 3r 18 35(c) 1,273 1,114
Restricted cash ZE4IIHE 1,363 1,098
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIES%EER 16 12,889 9,753
67,943 6_ 7_,6_529_
Total assets YaHE E 433,245 465,158
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AT EE(LEDS
of the Company
Share capital N 17 7,769 6,402
Share premium R iaE 17 48,820 36,376
Other reserves HithizE 18 191,363 183,903
Accumulated deficits EtEat (193,722) (119,774)
54,230 106,907
Non-controlling interests JEER 19(a) 7,502 8,208
Total equity i R 61,732 115,115
+AERBRAT —ZTHEER



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
RIE_ZFEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—E_BF “E-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
e 5 ARETT ARETFT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities EnHHaE
Lease liabilities HEaedE 24 5,177 9,215
Other payables HAFE (T RRI8 21 52,000 52,000
Convertible bonds oG ES 23 168,148 150,669
Deferred income tax liabilities IEIEFREMEas 20 45,517 50,412
B, 262,296
Current liabilities rEas
Trade payables B 5 ERIE 21 11,781 8,106
Other payables and accrued expenses  HhfE( S IB L ESTES 21 48,346 41,100
Financial guarantees B FR AR 1,110 1,518
Lease liabilities HEEE 24 2,438 3,010
Borrowings B 22 17,860 6,230
Current income tax liabilities ElERFR B aE 5,830 17,310
Amounts due to related parties FE(TREE A T 2h18 35(c) 13,306 10,473
BN Tl
Total liabilities LR R 371,513 350,043
Total equity and liabilities Hm kB AR 433,245 465,158

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8
April 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chen Zhi
BRE

Director

EFE

REFER _T_—FHA/N\BHETEE
T  THTINEFAREFTTES

Yu Shi Quan

R

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BHEERm

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE B _EFS /= —HIFE

2020 2019
—E_BF “EBE-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 AR¥TF T AREFIT
Revenue WA 5 126,384 122,374
Cost of sales FER=F RN 26 (112,514) (101,330)
Gross profit EH 13,870 21,044
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHES 26 (7,853) (12,209)
General and administrative expenses — R RITEREX 26 (56,730) (63,521)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial RABELERRARDN
assets at fair value through ETMEENAABRS,
profit or loss (B518) /$%8 399 (8)
Net change in provision for impairment &ERSHIEERERE
of financial and contract assets EE) R 26 (6,107) (786)
Provision for impairment on goodwill ~ BZENEMEFEEREEB
and other intangible assets (21,546) (66,058)
Other income =R N 25 2,944 336
Other gain/(loss) — net Hhlkz, (F518) — 358 25 211 (82)
Operating loss REESE __(74,812)  (121,284)
Finance income B A 29 59 62
Finance costs MR A 29 (18,413) (26,032)
Finance costs — net ISR AR — R R 29 (18,354) (25,970)
Share of losses of an associate EemE ISR - .. (1,366)
Loss before income tax IREFISIR ARS8 (93,166) (148,620)
Income tax credit FTiSfiiE R 30 18,627 5,097
Loss for the year FAEE (74,539) (143,523)
Loss attributable to: THIEEELEIE -
— Owners of the Company —HRAFIPFEE (73,784) (139,165)
- Non-controlling interests —JEERER (755) (4,358)
(74,539) (143,523)
+AERERAR —_Z_TEER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHEERD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE —E_EFF _H=F—HIFFE

2020 2019
—E_BF “E-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARETFT
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hth2 @k~ (5i8)
Items that will not be reclassified HETEEN 7HEE
subsequently to profit or loss B ARy IE H
Revaluation gain for property, plant and ¥ ¥ BB KRR HEBEE
equipment transferred to investment KREY =S MG
properties, net of deferred tax 0 BRI R IH 2,629 -
Items that may be reclassified to OB B E 1B m ARAYIEH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences BB E%E 4,667 (1,392)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) F£RHEMEMEmIE ~ (E518)
for the year 7,296 (1,392)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAKEREEEIEHEEE
for the year (67,243) (144,915)
Loss and total comprehensive loss  T3|IEHELEER
attributable to: 2 EESIEASEE -
- Owners of the Company o YNl =E=1 (66,488) (140,557)
- Non-controlling interests —FEER (755) (4,358)
(67,243) (144,915)
Loss per share for loss attributable ZATFFEEEGEEN
to owners of the Company SkEE
— Basic (RMB per share) — 2K (EBRARE 31 (0.0889) (0.2028)
— Diluted (RMB per share) —#% (BRAR) 31 (0.0889) (0.2028)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
G EmE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BE T -ZTFEF+_F=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FATMERELR
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital Contributed  Exchange Revaluation  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
Capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves surplus  reserves surplus  Reserves deficits Total interests equity
B
Rx  ROER A5RGE RAMERE ARG REERE  ERER  EMERR  IERE  RHE4 B FEREE  RENE
NOFe RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
hE  AEWTR AERBTn ARETn ARBTR ARETn ABRTR ARETn ARRTR ARETn ARWTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZBZBE-F-HNER 6,402 36,376 34519 997 4,297 96,890 (2,782) - 12982 (119,774 106,907 8,208 115,115
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - - - (13,784)  (73,784) (755 (74,539
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERE
Revaluation gain for property, plantand  #1% BB k& B2 EENE
equipment, net of deferred tax NRELTRE 8 - - - - - - - 2,629 - - 2,629 - 2,629
Currency translation differences BRAEER - - - - - - 4,667 - - - 4,667 - 4,667
Total comprehensive income 2ERELE - - - - - - 4,667 2,629 - (73,784)  (66,488) (755 (67,243)
Transactions with owners ARBANZS
Issuance of ordinary shares BTEER 17(b) 1,367 12,444 - - - - - - - - 13811 - 13811
Appropriation to statutory reserves BRTITHR - - - - - - - - 164 (164) - - -
Capital injection from a non-controlling  RE—EHEAT LR
shareholder of a subsidiary REWEE - - - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Total transactions with owners HEEANRRRE 1367 12,444 - - - - - 164 (164) 13811 49 13,860 7,497
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIBZREHZAZ+-HK
& 7,769 48,820 34519 997 41,297 96,890 1,885 2,629 13146 (193722 54,230 7502 61,732
Attributable to owners of the Company
VNS 3
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital ~ Contributed Bxchange Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserves Reserves deficits Total interests equity
it k&R ) ‘
e RiEE FHEE % Rk RaES EREE iya1 ] Zithit B FEREE RalE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mg ARETR ARETR ABBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-H-BhES 191,994 851,682 - 997 41,297 - (1,362) 12,982 (922,308) 175,282 12,680 187,962
Changes in accounting policy - - - - = S (28) = (287) (315) (114) (429)
Restated total equity as at 1 January
2019 19199 851682 . 997 41,297 = (1,390) 1,08 (0255 17497 1566 18753
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - (139,165) (139,165) (4,358) (143,523)
Other comprehensive income Hi2ENE
Currency translation differences EHBEEE - - - - - - (1,392) - - (139 S (1392)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELEE - - - - - - (1,39) - (139,165) (140,557) (4,358) (144,915)
Transactions with owners AREANRS
Cancellation of share premium HERREE - (851,682) - S S 851,682 S S S S S S
Capital reorganisation REER (187,194) - - - - (754,792) - S 941,986 S S S
Equity component of convertible bonds BE A RES 2
issued, net of transaction costs BRE NBRABRE 3 - - 42,003 - - - - - - 4,003 - 4,003
Conversion of convertiole bonds BhRRES 1,602 36,376 (7,484) - - - - - - 30494 - 30494
Total transactions with owners 2EEANRBEEB (185,592) (815,306) 34,519 - 96,890 S S 941,986 72,497 S 72,497 72,497
Balance t 31 December 2019 RIE-NE
TZA=+-BiEE 6,402 36,376 34,519 997 41,297 96,890 (2,782) 12,982 (119,774) 106,907 8,208 15,115

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SoA- E3
BHEERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_E_TFEf_H=F—HIFFE
2020 2019
ZEITF —B-NEF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities &EZ;EEFRFBRERE
Cash used in operations KREEBPMARE 33(a) (5,938) (25,910)
Interest received BUWH B 29 59 62
Interest paid BRFE (439) (333)
Income tax paid ENFTEHR (21) (88)
Net cash used in operating activities & EEPTAIRE PR (6,339) (26,269)
Cash flows from investing activities &REZEFFFBRERE
Payments for property, plant and ME- -BMERERBEZNR
equipment (1,071) (29,239)
Additions of intangible assets REBRELEE 9 = (8)
Return of deposit for township NETEE B ENRERN
development 10(i) - 5,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BEX
plant and equipment BT RIE 33(b) - 487
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, UKEEHIEB AT Z 50>
net of cash acquired O ERPRURERIR & 36 (12,671) -
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBPTARESFE (13,742) (23,760)
Cash flows from financing activities FIEZEFFFBRERE
Capital injection from non-controlling ZRE—BHWBASZ
shareholders of a subsidiary FFERERNTE 49 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (2,147) (2,237)
Repayment of other borrowing EiRHEMER (1,590) =
Net proceeds from issuance of BT MRESPIERIERER
convertible bonds - 33,510
Principal payment of lease liabilities HESEZAETRIE (2,235) (7,944)
Net proceeds from issuance of BT BERTERIEFEE
ordinary shares 17(a) 13,811 -
Drawdown of loans from a related party 42 EX R 575 &30 - 2,564
Drawdown of bank borrowings IREVER1T AR 15,350 =
Net cash generated from financing MEEHFAEEES R
activities 23,238 25,893
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERFELHE@EEM
cash equivalents GRL) 3% 3,157 (24,136)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E¥IMNRE RIS EEEE
of the year 16 9,753 33,880
Exchange (loss)/gains on cash and cash HR&&KBFEEEEEEN
equivalent SMEE (B518) Ui ad (21) 9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EFXRMNIBERFEESEEIER
the year 16 12,889 9,753

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group has
been focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising
businesses by consolidating with cultural media and film
media businesses in PRC and diversifying into tourism and

integrated developments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the

Cayman Islands.

The Company announced on 18 January 2019 that
the Company proposed to change the domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
discontinuation in the Cayman Islands and continuation
as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The
change has been effective on 18 March 2019 (Bermuda

time).

The address of its registered office has been changed from
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands to Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda after the change of domicile.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 are presented in thousands of units
of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for below:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— measured at fair value;

o investment properties — measured at fair value;

and

o biological assets — measured at fair value less

costs to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 EBEXREBRHE (@)

2.1 RUNEBE (@)

Going concern

During year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB74,539,000 and had
a net cash outflow from operating activities of
RMB6,339,000. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's current liabilities exceeds its current assets by
RMB32,728,000 while it had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB12,889,000.

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") outbreak
that led to a series of severe administrative control and
precautionary measures taken by governments and
authorities in Mainland China temporarily disrupted
the operations of the Group’s various business and
in particular the progress of the Group’s tourism
and integrated development has been delayed.
Management expects that the China’s government
would launch additional proactive economic and
monetary policies to stimulate its economic cycle and is
confident that the Group’s operation will be recovered
in 2021.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about
the ability of the Group to continue as a going

concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have assessed the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. In
order to improve the Group's financial position, the
directors of the Company have been implementing

various measures as follows:

(i)  The Group has successfully obtained a borrowing
facility of RMB20,000,000 from its shareholder
and the entire amount has been drawn on 1 April
2021. The borrowing will be repayable in two
years from the date of drawdown with an interest
rate of 5%. In addition, the major shareholder
has issued a letter of financial support to the
Company for a period of twelve months from
the approval date of these consolidated financial
statements to enable the Group to meet liabilities
as they fall due and carry on business without a

significant curtailment of operations;

(i) The Group has successfully renewed its bank
borrowing of RMB5,900,000 under a revolving
bank borrowing facility on 28 February 2021 for
a term of one year. Based on the communication
with the bank, the directors are confident that
the Group would be able to renew another
bank borrowing facility of RMB9,000,000
when its current term expires given the bank
borrowing is secured by the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying value of approximately
RMB26,681,000;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group is closely monitoring the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s operation
and particularly on the progress of the Group's
tourism project in Yongtai County. Despite there
were certain delays in the preparation work, the
Group anticipates the project will be ready for
commercial operation by the revised planned
time. The Directors are confident that the Group
would be able to commence the commercial
operations of the tourism project in Yongtai
County in 2021 and starts to generate income

and operating cash inflows to the Group;

The Group is in negotiation with certain potential
investors to issue new shares of the Company to
raise fund to finance the Group's working capital
and capital investment for one of the Group's

tourism and integrated development projects;

The Group has obtained a written confirmation
from the directors and related parties which
confirmed that they will not demand the Group
for repayment of the amounts due by the Group
in aggregate of RMB13,028,000 for the next

twelve months from 31 December 2020; and

2 EXE®

2.1

BHMFFHRRMEE
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(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(vi) The Group will continue its efforts to implement
measures to strengthen its operating cash flows
and working capital position, including expediting
collection of outstanding trade receivables,
expediting the sales of properties-held-for-sale
and deferring discretionary capital expenditures,

where necessary.

The directors, after making due enquiries and
considering the basis of management’s projections
described above and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation
performance, believe there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group at least in the coming
twelve months to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors consider
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainty exists

as to whether management of the Group is able to

achieve its plans and measures as described above.

Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going

concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to

generate adequate financing and operating cash flows

through achieving the below plans and measures:

(iii)

(iv)

Successful in obtaining financial support from the

major shareholder as and when required,;

Successful in renewing the loan facility of
RMB9,000,000 when its current term expires in
September 2021,

Implementation of measures to address the
disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
successfully and to complete the preparation
work and commence the commercial operation
of the projects of the Group’s tourism and
integrated development projects as planned as
well as the successful implementation of business
plan for these projects to improve the Group's

operating results and generate cash inflow;

Successful in raising funds through placement
of the Company’s shares to finance the Group's

working capital and capital investment;

Implementation of measures to control operating
costs, expedite collection from customers
effectively and generate sufficient cash inflows
from the sales of property held for sale to
improve the Group's cash flow position as well as

defer discretionary capital expenditures; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.1 RANEE (@)

Going concern (Continued)
(vi) Obtaining additional sources of financing as and

when needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Amendments to standards effective in 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of material
and IAS 8

Conceptual framework  Revised conceptual framework for

for financial reporting  financial reporting

2018
IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and Interest rate benchmark reform -
IAS 39 amendment to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and

IAS 39

The adoption of the amendments to standards
listed above did not have any material impact
on the consolidated financial statements for the

current year or any prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards

and interpretations that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the
Group

Amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19-related Rental

Concession'
Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest rate benchmark reform?
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4

and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use’

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract*

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements on classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-
current*

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint venture®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 June 2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

2 Effective date to be determined

A number of new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant effect on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated balance sheet respectively.

BHMFFHRRMEE

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.2 EHARERA

(a)

ftEAE]

EHALKR
MEAR BT AERZEH
B (BREGETEER) - B
AEERZ2REBERENEEM
AEDERRNERHZESR
FIEORERN LHEEN
BEHAZBRENEOZE
£ R (o] 3k B > 7 &% [ B 4
ZBRE -WEAT BTG E
BETAEBRERESGHA
RO EZBRERBRILEE
HERIEGH AR

EERRBBRS  EERK
EERARBERZREER
mEEEHE - REREBIET
SR EZRXZARER
TNEHEEEE R RRER R
SheMMBABNESHHRE
EERE2RELHFERE LR
RELAE B PR A R

—H

MEBAREE R EDZTBIF
EREmONREHEZEK
mR EHEZEHRNE
HEERBERTEREY -

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fuzhou DingCe Culture, one of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe (the “Structural Agreements”),
where Fuzhou DingCe Culture provides consulting
services to Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and is entitled
to (1) receive a substantial portion of the
economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe;
(2) exercise effective control over Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe
is a structured entity and deemed as subsidiary of
the Company under the requirements of IFRS 10

“Consolidated financial statements”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity (Continued)

When assessing whether to combine a structured
entity, the Group evaluates a range of factors,
including whether (1) the activities of the
structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business
needs so that the Group obtains the benefits
from the structured entity’s operations, (2) the
Group has decision-making powers to obtain the
majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of the
structured entity, and (4) the Group retains the
majority of the residual ownership risks related
to the assets in order to obtain the benefits from
its activities. The Group consolidates a structured
entity if an assessment of the relevant factors

indicates that it controls the structured entity.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's
results, assets and liabilities in its consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is

accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’
for using equity method in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

2 EBEXREBRHE (@)

2.2 EHARRR (@)

(c) Associates (Continued)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.3 Business combination

The Group applies acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

(c) HEQT ()

AEBMEHBE AT ZEHN
EHETEXZEENEF
REERAEBRNTERE
R EEUBE AT S
WIERMEREERRE AR
FEREEEHE BRIER
MRXPAEBBRETMEEE
EHRRE - BHEATNG
SR EBIEREE N LU
REAEFEMRMBKRE R
_:tﬁzo

BERBEQSDRERE
ENREHEERGHEE
Wi 2 2 PO RE ST ©

23 EBEH

FEBRBRBESEBTAHA
BRosUWIE—ENBARMEE
RERPEREE - RUYWKET
RIEAEAZBERAEBRET
RiEZADE-FIEENESREERE
HRAREBLEHFELEZEAEES
BEZARNE - REFCHEK
BZAHNEERFIAEZERE
kRBER T REBEBRHZA
REFE-

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

121



122

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to

the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The

CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi ("RMB"), which is
the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘general and

administrative expenses'.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(iy  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2 EBEXREBRHE (@)

2.5 HEHRE (@)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2 EARGSERBE (B)

2.6 ME - -BERRE (&)
ME BB RRFEIITENERZE
stE AR R F IR A7
BEHRREE - AREHUT

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
BF 404
Leasehold improvements 5 — 10 years or the remaining term

of any non-renewable lease, whichever is shorter

HEYEEE SEN0FERATEEEENGF TFHR UBEERE)
Machinery 5-10 years
as S5E104
Fixture, furniture and equipment 5 years

HE R RRE 54

Motor vehicles 5-10 years
AE S5E106F
Exhibition animals 5 years
ERESHY 54

Bearer plants 15 - 25 years
EEMEY 15F 255

EENMGREERICAEHE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The Group’s golden camellia trees qualify as bearer
plants under the definition in IAS 41 “Agriculture” and
are therefore accounted for under the rules for plant
and equipment. Golden camellia trees are classified
as immature until the produce can be commercially
harvested. At that point they are reclassified and
depreciation commences. Immature golden camellia

trees are measured at accumulated cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

For transfer of property, plant and equipment to
investment properties because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
surplus. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation surplus will be

transferred to retained earnings.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.

Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as

part of other income.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.8 BMELEE (8)

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the

acquisition date.

Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences

over their estimated useful lives of seven years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and
o The expenditure attributable to the computer

software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.8 BMELEE (8)

Computer software and web site (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part
of the computer software and web site cost include
the software development employee costs. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.

Right to a land lease

Right to a land lease represents the operating lease
with favourable terms relative to market terms as
acquired in a business combination that is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The right to a land
lease has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 41 years.

Township operation right

Township operation right represents a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities in the operation site.
The township operation right are shown at historical
cost. It has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 40 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

Township operation right (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.

Exclusive operation rights

Exclusive operation rights represent the exclusive rights
arising from its contractual agreement as acquired in a
business combination and are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The exclusive operation rights
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the exclusive operation rights of

approximately 7 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Properties held for sale

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

210 FHEME

Properties are classified as properties held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

2.11 Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell, see Note 11 for further information on

determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including commission and estimated costs of transport
to the market but excludes finance costs and income

taxes.

The golden camellia trees are bearer plants and are
therefore presented and accounted for as property,
plant, and equipment (Note 7). However, the golden
camellia flowers growing on the trees is accounted for
as biological assets until the point of harvest. Harvested
golden camellia are transferred to inventory at fair

value less costs to sell when harvested.

Changes in fair value of golden camellia flowers on
trees are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Farming costs such as labour costs and fertiliser costs

are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

2 EBEXREBRHE (@)

2N2RERHMEHEE (B)

(Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI|. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other losses. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Net foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in general and administrative expenses
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other

losses in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2N2RERHMEHEE (B)

(Continued)
Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the impairment as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as

lifetime expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

° The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

213RHEMIR

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at

the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third

party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Financial guarantees (Continued)
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
of newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.16 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. See Note 15 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1(b) for a description of the Group's impairment

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.18 Restricted cash
Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified
as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

2.19 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current accrual and other payables in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme ("MPF") for eligible employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are
held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Company’s contributions to the MPF are

expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.24 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Borrowings (Continued)

2 EBEXREBRHE (@)

2.24 fask (%)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Convertible bond

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
bond is determined using a market interest rate for a
non-convertible bond with similar terms. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion, early redemption
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity or
derivative liability according to the conversion feature
embedded. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity or derivative
liability component in proportion to their initial carrying

amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a convertible bond is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a convertible bond is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on

conversion or expiry.

2.26 Revenue recognition

The Group determined when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (i) identify the contract(s) with customer; (ii)
identify separate performance obligations in a contract;
(iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate
transaction price to performance obligations; and (v)
recognise revenue when performance obligation is

satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Newspaper and public vehicles advertising
The Group renders services for the creation,
production and placement of advertising
materials through certain newspaper publishers
and public vehicles operators. Revenue from
providing the advertising services are recognised

at a point in time when the services are rendered.

The Group’s role in the provision of services
on newspaper and public vehicles advertising
is that of a principal. When deciding the most
appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs
of revenue, both the legal form and substance
of the agreement between the Group and its
business partners are reviewed to determine each
party’s respective role in the transaction. Hence,
revenue from newspaper advertising services is
recognised on a gross basis when services are

rendered.

Marketing and consulting services

Revenue from marketing services comprised of
(i) revenue from provision of marketing planning
and consulting services and (ii) commission from

sale of properties.

Revenue from marketing planning and consulting
services is recognised over time when the services
are rendered. Revenue are recognised over the

respective contract terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Marketing and consulting services
(Continued)

Commission from sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time when the services are rendered
and the customer (i.e. property developer) has
entered into the sales and purchase agreement

with the buyer.

Customers are invoiced based on the payment
schedule. If the services rendered by the
Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services

rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Printing services

Printing revenue is recognised at a point in time
when printing services are rendered and the
legal title of the newspaper is transferred to the

customers.

Sales of agricultural products

Revenue from the sales of agricultural products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods to the customer. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been placed at
the customer’s disposal (generally at the seller’s
premises), the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the goods in accordance
with the sales contracts, the acceptance provision
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been

satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2 BEARGSERBE (B)

2.26 W RS (48)

(v) Others (v) Efth
Other revenue mainly includes rental income HttWam T ZBFRESHA
and other miscellaneous income. Rental income REMMBEEA -HEUA

are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms. Other miscellaneous
income are recognised at a point in time when
the respective control on goods or services are

transferred to the customers.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.

2.28 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases properties and land as lessee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 41

years but may have termination options.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s

useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that

option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,

security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEARGHHEBE (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued) 2.28FHE (8)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising FRAREERUTEEZ A
the following: = !
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease s YIFFENEABZER
liability
e any lease payments made at or before the e MNHEBBBHAIZAIEHZE
commencement date less any lease incentives AEEMMBEEANEWHAE
received BE
e any initial direct costs, and s  (EREVITEEZLAEA; K
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the TREEEASRESEEMUE
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on EfEHRFHREBAANRESE
a straight-line basis. The useful life used for the asset’s ME-REBEENEENZAFER
depreciation purpose are: FHAA
Rented land and properties Remaining lease term THE + it W2 BR T FHER
2.29 Dividend distribution 229 RE DIk
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders BARABREDIKNEELRE
is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial BANBIKRENES WER) HE
statements in the period in which the dividends are HNEBEARAERNMBRERR
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, mRAaR.

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the period in which they are incurred.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk and other payables

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority of
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables balance and other payables
denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").
The Group does not hold or issue any
derivative financial instruments to manage

its exposure to foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2020, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have
been RMB320,000 lower/higher (2019:
RMB337,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other

receivables balance and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’'s interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings and bank deposits. Bank
borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by bank

deposits held at variable rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings and bank deposits at the
balance sheet date and prepared assuming
the amount of bank borrowings and bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2020, would have been
RMB24,000 higher/lower (2019: RMB46,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on the bank

borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted cash, and bank balances
included in the consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
objective of the Group’'s measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to

recoverability problem.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
receivables, contract assets, other financial assets
at amortised cost (including deposits and other
receivables and amount due from related parties)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. Majority of bank
balances are deposited with reputable
banks. The Group has not incurred
significant loss from non-performance by
these parties in the past and management

does not expect so in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permit the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for trade

receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses and also

incorporated forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these trade
receivables was RMB9,298,000 (2019:
RMB3,163,000) based on expected credit
loss rates up to 100% (2019: 100%)
applied on different groupings.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries in which
it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on the expected

changes in this forward-looking factor.

When trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are

credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised
costs, the Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis

throughout each reporting period.

Management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of the balances
based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking

information.

To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of default as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the

debtors’ ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes

in the operating results of debtors
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

(iv)

(Continued)

o significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the
same debtor

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of the debtor in the
Group and changes in the operating

results of the debtor

Other financial assets at amortised cost
have low risk of default and it is not
expected any losses from non-performance
by the counterparties. As at 31 December
2020, the Group assessed that there is no
significant increase in credit risk for these
balances from the end of previous reporting
date and the expected credit loss rate for
these financial assets is immaterial under 12

months expected credit losses model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk
in relation to debt investments that are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amount

of these investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group invests surplus cash in time deposits
and money market deposits with appropriate
maturities. The Group reported net loss of
RMB74,539,000 and operating cash outflow
of RMB6,339,000 during the year ended
31 December 2020. As at the same date,
the Group held cash and cash equivalent of
RMB12,889,000 (2019: RMB9,753,000) (Note
16), trade receivables of RMB5,461,000 (2019:
RMB9,561,000) (Note 15) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk and to fund the Group's operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
mortgage loans with a repayable on demand
clause amounted to RMB17,410,000 (2019:
RMB4,640,000). Details of the bank borrowings

are disclosed in Note 22(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFFHRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMHREEER (B
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRABEZER (&
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) WENEEZRME (B
The table below analyses the Group's financial TERALBBEHEEHDES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based AWEBB ERERHEB X
on the remaining period at the balance sheet SENEMAEE 25 HEE
date to the contractual maturity date. The EIHRBABR B DT o R
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENEREAGORITARE
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within MeBERITENEERL R
12 months equal their carrying balances, as 128 B R B A& REER
the impact of discounting is not significant. HiFm#Eer-ARgms 81
Specifically, for bank and other borrowing HEHSFINBITENEE
which contain a repayment on demand clause KEZBERANIBITREMBE
which can be exercised at the discretion of the FoOUTRMmARIRERE
counterparties, the analysis shows the cash S UEBOERERNCR
outflow based on the earliest period in which the NEFHRAER
entity can be required to pay.
Less than More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
—FLR —EME RMELE AENE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥ETr ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2020 RZIEZEE
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B REMERFE 38,083 52,000 = = 90,083
Bank borrowings RITREM 18,227 - - = 18,227
Amounts due to related parties EREEALTIE 13,306 13,306
Convertible bonds R ES - 182,628 - - 182,628
Financial guarantees MR
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEERELE) 3,050 2,780 7,601 = 13,431
Lease liabilities HESR 2,894 1,798 1,444 5,962 12,098
75,560 239,206 9,045 5,962 329,773
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hE
+ZR=t+-H
Trade and other payables BEREMENTIE 31,236 - 52,000 = 83,236
Bank borrowings RITRER 4,660 - - - 4,660
Other borrowing Hitifg= 1,654 - - - 1,654
Amounts due to related parties ETEEALHE 10,473 = = = 10,473
Convertible bonds R ES - - 182,628 = 182,628
Financial guarantees FBER
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEEREH) 5,430 2,800 9,330 - 17,560
Lease liabilities HE&HE 2,865 2,775 3,038 7,368 16,046
56,318 5,575 246,996 7,368 316,257
+AERBRAT —ZTHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 is 44.7% (2019:
36.4%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category

MEEREE (&)

3.3 REMBINEMIA

2020 2019
i et 23 —E-AE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREEFTT
Assets as per balance sheet EEBRERMINEE
Financial assets at fair value through NAERKIBRERARD
profit or loss TREE 6,564 6,165
Other financial assets at amortised cost:  $%# 8 A% 251/ BR A9 EL 1th
TREE
Trade receivables, deposits and other BREREZIEBE -EE K
receivables HpE W IE 65,257 69,560
Amounts due from related parties EWRAE A 318 1,273 1,114
Restricted cash ZIRHIRE 1,363 1,098
Cash and cash equivalents BeKNE+EEEEB 12,889 9,753
Total et 87,346 87,690
2020 2019
—ETEF “E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFTT
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEEREARMIINEGE
Carried at amortised cost: HHHEH R AT ER
Trade and other payables B2 REMEARIE 90,083 78,407
Borrowings Bl 17,860 6,230
Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A T8 13,306 10,473
Convertible bonds IR (A 168,148 150,669
Financial guarantees IR 1,110 1,518
Lease liabilities HEaE 7,615 12,225
Total et 298,122 259,522
+rzERERAR —s—sasx 167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties, financial guarantees,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds. The fair value
of other financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments,

unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
there are certain financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss measured at value in use using discounted
cash flow method which approximate their fair values.
See Note 14 for disclosures relevant to financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
there are certain properties held for sale measured
at fair value less cost to sell using direct market
comparable approach and income approach which
are approximate to their fair values. See Note 13 for

disclosures relevant to properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4

3.5

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, there are certain investment
properties measured at fair value less cost to sell
using income approach which are approximate to
their fair values. See Note 8 for disclosures relevant to

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
there are certain biological assets measured at fair
value less cost to sell using discounted cash flow model
which approximate to their fair values. See Note 11 for

disclosures relevant to biological assets.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No disclosure of the offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities is made as there is no netting

arrangement in place during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of assets
The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance and
changes in operational and financing cash flows. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets (including
goodwill and other intangible assets) are grouped
at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The recoverable
amount of the CGU has been determined higher of
value in use or fair value less cost of disposal. These
calculations require the use of estimates, including
operating results, income and expenses of the business,
future economic conditions on growth rates and future

returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Management of the Group has performed impairment
review for goodwill annually. For other intangible
assets, impairment review are performed whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Details of
impairment review for other intangible assets are

disclosed in Note 9.

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.

Valuation of biological assets

The biological assets are stated at fair values less cost
to sell. This requires an independent valuer’s valuation
of the fair value of the biological assets based on
management'’s estimates and assumptions. Changes in
the underlying key assumptions of the valuation could
impact the fair value of the assets. Further details are

disclosed in Note 11.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group owns an investment in a movie income
right and a network drama which have been classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The management performed an assessment on the fair
value of the balance based on discounted cash flow
model which required significant estimates, including
the streams of income which the Group is entitled,
determination of appropriate discount rate and
expected timing of settlement. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the financial assets
at fair value in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(d)

Valuation of investment properties
The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using valuation techniques. Further details of the

judgements and assumptions made, see Note 8.

Valuation of properties held for sale

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. In absence of current price in
an active market for similar properties which is the best
evidence of fair value, the management determined
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimates. In making its estimates, the management
considers information from the valuations of properties
performed by external professional valuer by (i)
direct market comparable approach, including the
assumptions of the adjusting factors regarding to the
location, size and nature of the properties; and (ii)
income approach, including the assumptions of the
expected rent income, growth rate and discount rate to
determine the fair value. Had the Group used different
inputs or assumptions, the fair value of the properties
would be different and thus caused impact to the
consolidated income statement. Details of the valuation

of properties held for sale are disclosed in Note 13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group recognises impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses model. The model involves
the assessment on the probability of default on the
balances based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking information.
Impairment is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. The identification of probability of
default requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Details of key assumptions and inputs used are

disclosed in Note 3.1.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.
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REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are mainly derived from
the provision of newspaper and public vehicles advertising
services to advertisers in the PRC, the provision of marketing
and consulting services, printing services and sales of
agricultural products. The total sales amount of the Group’s
five largest customers is RMB56,552,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB26,713,000). An analysis of

the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

KA
REIBEENBAETERRAFEH
EEEFIRERAAZHEEESR
%o UM E 5 550 RTS  EDRIARTS
RBERER - BE_ZTZTE+_H
=t+t—BLEEE AEREAERML
tHEARIE A AR 56,552,0005T (ZF
—hE : AR26,713,0007T) o &NEME
FRWADHAT :

2020 2019
a3 5 “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Newspaper and public vehicles advertising RAERBEEEES 10,150 4,376
Marketing and consulting services & K 55 S AR 7S 55,084 23,813
Printing services EN R AR 75 4,328 4,408
Sales of agricultural products tHE R E m 56,167 87,265
Others HAth 655 2,512
126,384 122,374
2020 2019
323 “B-NE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Timing of revenue recognition WSt 2 e 50 B

— At a point in time — 1B B RS 124,033 115,225
— Over time —PEBF S 2,213 5,149

— Under IFRS16 —IRBEIR R & %R
B165% 138 2,000
126,384 122,374

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue derives
from a customer of the Group amounted to RMB39,282,000
which accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue. (2019:Nil)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (Continued)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities

relate

d to contracts with customers:

BHMFFHRRMEE

WA (48)
BEERENERZEEREGR

FEBERIBUTETFGNERZE
EREE:

2020 2019
i 33 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Contract assets (Note (i) EHEE (MEE>)) 3,639 3,891
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (ii)) TR ERE (MTEEG)) (119) (147)
Contract assets — net BNEE—FHR 3,520 3,744
Contract liabilities (Note (iii) and Note 21) aHas PusGinkmisE21) 9,741 6,717
Total contract liabilities X BEEEE 9,741 6,717
Notes: MEE -
(i)  Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration () BSHEESEAEESNLENEEES
in the exchange for services that the Group has transferred ZERBRIBAENEF - E2EEE U
to customer. The contract assets are transferred to trade SRR BRI B A (E R IE 12 B B R
receivables when the right to bill the customer has established FHMKE SN EETEEEEEW
and receipt of the consideration is conditional only on the HIF o
passage of time.
(i)  The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk iy HEEBFEHANSERBZEWZHE

characteristics as trade receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses (Note 3.1(b)). As at 31 December 2020,
a provision of RMB119,000 (2019: RMB147,000) was made
against the gross amount of contract assets. The impairment

of contract assets is disclosed in Note 2.12.

EAMERRRSE-

AEBFRABL AN BHEEEIBE
HBEE (H:E3.1(b) - R_ZTE T4
+ZA=t+—H MENEELEEY
AHEARE119,0007T (ZE—HF: A
R #147,00070) W& H SN EERE
FABEE2. 1249 88

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5. A (&)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)  Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance of non-

refundable payments made by customers.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue, which
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year, recognised during the year relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

4 A

HEERENERZEEREGR

MisE © (@)

(i) BHNEREBERFFELUATREN
R A0 U R A RRIE

MENaREZNEA
TRITRERMESAGESNERE
HRANKATE Bt AFNENER

Revenue recognised that was included in the s AEEHNEBEGF

contract liability balance at the beginning of BRI A
the year

(iv)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations
resulting from advertising services contracts and sales of

agricultural products:

Advertising services B & AR
Sales of agricultural products HEREM

Management expects the above unsatisfied (or partially
satisfied) contracts will be recognised as revenue

during the next reporting period.
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“EER) ©
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREF T
735 521

(iv) HRBITZEBEHNEE

TRINTESRZENRBERER

EEZHRBITROEME:

2020 2019

—EEFE —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

8,032 6,717

1,709 =

9,741 6,717

EEBRP LAERET (REDET)
WENRK T —REHEARER S WK
A

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities
The Executive Directors have been identified as the
CODM. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the
CODM for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.

The Group has two business segments, namely (i)
Publishing and advertising segment and (ii) Tourism and

integrated developments segment.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of earnings
before interest, other income, other gain/(loss) and
income tax. This measurement basis excludes the
effects of non-recurring expenditure from operating
segments. Interest income and finance cost are not
allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven
by the central treasury function, which manages the
cash position of the Group. No analysis of segment
assets and liabilities is regularly provided to the

Executive Directors.

As the CODM considers most of the Group's
consolidated revenue and results are attributable to the
market in the PRC and the Group’s consolidated assets
are substantially located in the PRC, no geographical

information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

As at 31 December 2020, the Executive Directors

considered the nature of the Group’s business and

determined that the Group has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Publishing and advertising segment, which mainly
included provision of the advertising services,
marketing and consulting services, and printing

services.

Tourism and integrated developments segment,
which mainly included provision of tourism and
integrated services through its media, resort and
eco-tourism integrated development projects and
the sale of agricultural products, including the
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project, Yongtai
Distinctive Town and Cooperation Project in

Yongfu Town.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other
segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

December 2020.

BHMFFHRRMEE

6 DEEHN (@)
(b) SEWARSEEE (@)

TRIITRBE_Z-_TF+_A
=+t —HLEEEMERDERH
FTRATESZOEXBEREMD

$HIEH o
Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
i35
BEAER iR R E & st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET ARET ARETR

Segment revenue from
external customers

Timing of revenue recognition
for revenue

At a point in time

Over time

Under IFRS16

Segment results
Other income
Other gain

Finance costs - net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

KENBELH

SEWE 56,443 69,941 126,384
Wi 5 e T R
H{ER 56,443 67,590 124,033
B B ] = 2,213 2,213
RIBEIPR R SR 1657 = 138 138
DEEE (42,021) (35,946) (77,967)
HA 2,944
HitgEs18 21
b YN (18,354)
BRFRSHIAIE R (93,166)
FIERER 18,627
FREE (74,539)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

6 SHEEHN (&)

(b) DEWRAKRDEESE (B)

TRIITRBE_Z-AFE+R
=+—HLEEEMERDERH
FTHRATESZOEXBEREMD

December 2019. fBIEH o
Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
RERESERE R & st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETFT
Segment revenue from external XENDEAH
customers NN 91,267 31,107 122,374
Timing of revenue recognition W o o 2 B
for revenue
At a point in time F B 87,509 27,716 115,225
Over time B B [ 1,758 3,391 5,149
Under IFRS16 REERTBREEINF165 2,000 - 2,000
Share of losses of an associate MBS NEER - (1,366) (1,366)
Segment results R ES (85,167) (37,737) (122,904)
Other income HgA 336
Other loss HiEsE (82)
Finance costs — net MR A3 (25,970)
Loss before income tax BRFRSHAIE R (148,620)
Income tax credit FIERER 5,097
Loss for the year EREE (143,523)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME-BEKRSE
Fixture,
Landand  Construction Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition Mature Immature
buildings in progress improvements  Machinery  equipment vehicles animals  bearer plants  bearer plants Total
HEng KB R KA

1HEEF  GEIR ke B8 FRRRE RE  BEBYM ERREM  ETREN it
RMBOOO  RMB'00D  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMB00D  RMBOD0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'00D
ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETn  ARNTn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 KZF-nE-B-B
Cost i 49,565 1597 10,071 32123 9,675 6,970 4,293 - - 120,294
Accumulated depreciation RithE (908) o (6515) (28,591) (6318) (5,634) (143) - - (48,109)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitHEER - - (1,22) (3532) - - - - - 4,759)
Net carrying amount RESE 48,657 7,597 2,329 - 3,357 1336 4,150 - - 67,426
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZE-nE

tZB=t-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount FNRERE 48,657 7,597 2,309 - 3357 1336 4,150 - - 67,426
Additions HE - 12117 2,101 - M 187 - 5,585 10,048 31,009
Transfer &3 - (4363) 4,363 - - - - - - -
Disposals HE - - (604) - (25 - - - - (629)
Depreciation (Note 26) & (ze) (1,499 - (1,514) - (834) (591) (859) (137) S (5,434)
Impairment A = = (969) - (966) @n) - - = (2,208)
Currency translation differences SEREZE - - 3 - i 5 - = = 48
Closing net carrying amount FREEFR 47,158 15,411 5738 - 2,454 664 3,291 5,448 10,048 90,212
At 31 December 2019 KZF-nE+ZA=1+-H
Cost [ 49,565 15411 10,777 13 10,589 7171 4293 5585 10,048 145,562
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (2,407) - (4,070) (28,591) (7,169) (6,234) (1,002 (137) = (49,610)
Accumulated impairment losses ZiRERR - - (969) (3532) (966) (27) - - - (5,740)
Net carrying amount RAFE 47,158 15411 5738 - 2454 664 3291 5448 10,048 90,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

7 ME- -BERsE (E8)

Fixture,
Land and  Construction Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition Mature Immature
buildings in progress improvements  Machinery  equipment vehicles animals  bearer plants  bearer plants Total
i EE B RE#
ThREF HEIR §E HE  GLRRE "E RE®Y ETREY  ETRED At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-2-%%
TZR=+-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRAFE 47,158 15,411 5738 - 2454 664 3291 5,448 10,048 90,212
Additions HE - 1,023 4 - 4 - - - - 1,01
Acquisttion of a subsidiary (Note 36) WE-MNELE (536) - - - - 57 - - - - 527
Transfer to investment properties (Note 8)  EEZERENE (Hxs) (26,681) - - - - - - - - (26,681)
Revaluation surplus BiRE 3,506 - - - - - - - - 3,506
Disposals HE (6,527) - - - 6) - - - - (6,533)
Depreciation (Note 26) & (3k26) (1,498) - (1,577) - (59) (106) (859) (275) - (4911)
Impairment A (5,309 836) - - - S - - - (6,145)
Currency translation differences EEAEEE - - - - - 12 - - = 12
Closing net carrying amount FREETE 10,649 15,598 4,165 - 2423 570 243 5173 10,048 51,058
At 31 December 2020 RZE-BE+ZAZ+-A
Cost 72 17,638 16,434 10,710 2123 24,003 7132 4,293 5585 10,048 127,966
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,680) = (5,576) (28,591) (20,614) (6,288) (1,861) (412) = (65,022)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitAEEE (5,309) (836) (969) (3532) (966) (274) - - - (11,886)
10,649 15,598 4,165 - 2423 570 2432 5173 10,048 51,058

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain buildings
with a fair value of RMB26,681,000 have transferred
to investment properties as evidenced by end of owner
occupation. The difference between the net book value and

fair value has been credited to revaluation surplus (Note 8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFFHRRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE- -BERRZE ()

(Continued)
Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment
has been charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

FEENYE - BERRBHESRT
AR EHEERERNMG !

2020 2019

—TFF “EBE-NE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Cost of sales 4 & B A 274 137
General and administrative expenses —RRITERAX 4,637 5,297
Total #ast 4,911 5,434

The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting
the aggregate difference totalling RMB6,145,000 (2019:
RMB2,208,000) for these property, plant and equipment.
These impairment charges for the year ended 31 December
2020 were recorded in the Group's consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “General and administrative

expenses" (Note 26).

FEBRZENE BERZERERD
RBBEENHEHIEEARE
6,145,000t (ZE—NF : AR
2,208,0007t) cBEZZTZEF+A
E+—HEFEE ZEREMAINASE
EEeHE2EWERN —RERITHAXZ]
mac ik (FisE26) o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREWME
2020 2019
t et 323 —E-AE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFTT
Fair value NAME
At 1 January w—A—H - =
Transfer from property, plant and EEAYE -BERRE
equipment (Note 7) (pF5E7) 26,681 =
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 26,681 -

Rental income derived from investment properties amounted
to approximately RMB138,000 (2019: Nil) during the year
(Note 5).

FR - BEYENHESBRALYAB AR
138,0007T (Z & —H 5 © #) (MFsE5) o

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Valuation process of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2020 has been determined on the basis of

valuation carried out by an independent qualified valuer.

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable inputs

The table below analyses investment property carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows

o Quoted price (unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included with level that
are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from

prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3)

The Group’s investment properties are categorised as Level
3.

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties is derived
using the income approach, by taking into account the
unobservable inputs included expected rental income,

growth rate and discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EBEEE
Township  Exclusive
Computer Non-compete Customer Rightto  operation  operating
software ~ agreement  Goodwill relationships ~ Trademark ~ Web site a land lease right right Total
MR
BERAE RPN #8  ZREA At |k DHEER ek BRAE @t

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'0O00  RMB'ODO  RMB000  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBOO0  RMB'OOD  RMB'00O
ARRTR  AREBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 KZ%-nE-B-R
Cost S 3139 11,500 78,631 14,500 9,400 8476 193,439 28,000 - 347,085
Accumulated amortisation B (2,672 (11,500) = (14,500) (7139 (8,476) 3,171) (4n) = (47,925)
Accumulated impairment losses f (410) - (12,573) - (2,265) - - - - (15,248)
Net carrying amount FETE 57 - 66,058 - - - 190,268 27,529 - 283912
Year ended 31 December 2019 HECE-NE

+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENREIE 57 - 66,058 - - - 190,268 27,59 - 283,912
Additions AE 8 - - - - - - - - 8
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHBAT = = 3,955 = = = = = = 3,955
Amortisation (Note 26) 4 (26) () - - - - (4,757) (705) - (5,468)
Impairment HE - - (66,058) - - - - - - (66,058)
Closing net carrying amount EXEASE 59 = 3,955 = = = 185,511 26,824 = 216,349
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE

+ZA=1-A
Cost S 3,146 11,500 82,586 14,500 9,400 8476 193,439 28,000 - 351,047
Accumulated amortisation E- (2,676) (11,500) = (14,500) (7139 (8.476) (7,928) (1,176) = (53,391)
Accumulated impairment losses RHHERE (@1) S (78,631) S (2,265 S = = = (81,307)
Net carrying amount RETE 59 - 3,95 - - - 185,511 26,804 - 216,349
Year ended 31 December 2020 HECZ2EE

tZR=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRETE 59 - 3,955 - - - 185,511 26,824 - 216,349
Additions AE - - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) ~ WEHBAT (36 - - 7253 - - - - - 5,582 12,835
Amortisation (Note 26) &3 (326) ) - - - - - (4757) (707) (362) (5,830
Impairment AE - - - - - - (21,546) - = (21,546)
Closing net carrying amount EXRASE 55 - 11,208 - - - 159,208 26,117 5,220 201,808
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF+-A=+-H
Cost [ 3,146 11,500 89,839 14,500 9,400 8476 193,439 28,000 5582 363,882
Accumulated amortisation (2,680) (11,500) - (14,500) (7,135) (8,476) (12,685) (1,883) (362) (59,221)
Accumulated impairment losses RiHEFR (411) . (78,631) . (2,265) . (21,546) . - (102,853)
Net carrying amount REFH 55 - 11,208 - - - 159,208 26117 5220 201,808
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to
“General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs") as

summarised below:

BREEE (@)
mRAERHEREHR2ERERD
M— B RATEAE X bR o

MEEBAEAMS BEEDEE TR
TEEEMU ((REEEEM) !

Accumulated Net carrying
Cost Impairment amount
7% REtHE IR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTR

As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+ZA=1+—-H
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project (Note (i) BRABEAEEMER (F i) 66,058 (66,058) =
Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou (Note (i) ~ EMBEHBEELER () 7,253 = 7,253
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (ii)) XEEAMEES (H2H) 3,955 - 3,955

As at 31 December 2019 RIB-AE+ZA=1+-
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project (Note (ii) TRETEAREHES (s (||| )
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (ii)) XEEAMEEE (H2H)

(i)  Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou
During the year ended 31 December 2020, goodwill
amounting to RMB7,253,000 was recognised as a
result of acquisition of Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd.
Goodwill has been allocated to the CGU that engaged
in provision of the public vehicles advertising services
for the purpose of impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the CGU determined based on the value in
use approach was higher than the carrying amount of
the CGU.

As at 31 December 2020, management of the Group

determined that there was no impairment of the CGU

to which the goodwill has been allocated.
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3,955 (66,058) 11,208

66,058 (66,058) =
3,955 = 3,955

70,013 (66,058) 3,955

ENRHEEESER
BE_TZ_ZTF+__HA=+—H
tEE RAKEBRERNEHIERE
RABERmE ARE7,253,000
TomBBENRAMS  mECES DR
ENERUBHEEESRBEN
REELBAU - REBEERAEELE
ENREEFCBEMAMNAI KL EE
BRIBEELEAMNREE-

R_ZB_EF+"_H=+—H'%&
EREERRESAEE I DS
WREELEBULRRBE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Cooperative project in Yongfu Town

During the year ended 31 December 2019, goodwill
amounting to RMB3,955,000 was recognised as a
result of acquisition of Zhang Ping Nong Bo Hui New
Specialized Farmers’ Cooperative. Goodwill has been
allocated the CGU that operates the cooperative
project in Yongfu Town for the purpose of impairment

testing.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment of

the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated.

Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount
was determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal method. That calculation uses the asset-based
approach, which the key assumption includes the

adjusted land unit rate.

As at 31 December 2019, due to delay in timeline
and changes in market condition, management of
the Group has revised its business plan for this CGU
and determined that the provision for impairment of
goodwill amounted to RMB66,058,000. The entire
goodwill arising from the acquisition of Supreme Glory

Limited had been impaired as at 31 December 2019.

BHMFFHRRMEE

O EBREE (&)

(ii)

(iii)

KBEESEEEB

BE_Z-—hhEF+A=+—H
HFEE AKBEFEBERAK
BEHESFHBIBEARE
3,955,000 C e BB E RIS > &
E2ENRERLEKEHESIEEE
NIREEE B

RTECEERCFE-AETC
B=+—H x&EEEREMREMR
BEEOEBENRESELEBEMUY
WRME ~

IERATERASEMER
RZE—hE+B=+—H 7
W [B] & B8 32 A 70 BB H B A A
BT -ZEEREEEME H
FERRBDELCHAELMEBENME
7%0

R _EBE—AE+ZA=+—8"
HRERERIEER T REES > A&
EEREEBCENZREELEN
WEHE TEEHmEHNERSE
AR #66,058,0007c WEESE1RA
RAREENEZHBEEER S
—hE+-A=+—HREE"

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

Q

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(iii) Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
impairment charge of RMB23,142,000 arose in the
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project CGU has
been determined after taking into consideration the
independent external lawyers’ opinion in relation to
the likelihood of occurrence of the possible outcomes
of the litigation as of 31 December 2020 based on
the information obtained at the relevant stage of the
litigation, including related legal correspondence.
Management has also engaged an independent
external valuer to assist in determining the recoverable
amount based on the fair value less cost of disposal
method. That calculation uses the asset-based
approach, which the key assumption includes the
adjusted land unit rate and the likelihood of occurrence

for the possible outcomes for the litigation.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount
of the entire CGU was RMB120,538,000 and
impairment charge of RMB1,357,000, RMB239,000
and RMB21,546,000 is made against the property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets respectively during the year ended 31 December
2020

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

9

BREE (8)
(i) ERBERSEMEE (&)

BE_ZE”_ZEHF+"-_A=+—H
FFEE ERATERARSEMIERR
CTEEBUNEENBERIAR
#523,142,00070 5 48 51 K2 & 17 Hh 5B
ERAEREBEE_TS-_TFE+_A
=+ —HFFAREARELENT
EMNEREEE BEERRER
FrEAERAPS VR E R (B1E548
BEERG) - BEETZREBIL
SNER{L(E BT > UIBBIRIBEA A E R
HE R AAEE E o] W [O] & B8 o 5% 51
HERBEEEMR LI HFEZRRE
TR EE L M BB KAl
REAE REBEMTIREM o

RZEZEF+ZB=+—8"
BERSEESEUNIIKE &2
A NER#120,538,0007T @ It #L &
E_E_TF+__B=+—8HL
FENME BREKRSE FH
REERBEEEDHFRAE
B AR#1,357,0000 AR#E
239,000t & AE121,546,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(iii) Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project

(Continued)

Significant assumption used in valuation included
likelihood of occurrence for the possible outcomes
for the litigation and the adjusted land use rate.
The analysis below is performed for reasonably
possible movements in key assumptions with all
other assumptions held constant for the year ended
31 December 2020, showing the impact on the
recoverable amount of the entire CGU and the total

impairment charge of the CGU.

If the adjusted land use rate used in the value-in-
use calculation for this CGU had been 5% lower
than management’s estimates, the Group would
have to recognise an additional impairment charge
of RMB5,669,000. If the likelihood of occurrence for
prevailing the litigation in the value-in-use calculation
for this CGU had been 5% lower than management'’s
estimates, the Group would have to recognise an
additional impairment charge of RMB6,689,000.

BHMFFHRRMEE

BREE (8)
(i) ERBERSEMEES (B

HEFREANEZRRENFAE
FEREREVEEMNAEMEUEHE LS
HMEBABER - UTHBEE_ZT_F
F+-RB=+—HLEFEMRBH
thEEFENERT TREET
FEEENCEEIHEBEREE
FEMNNATREERAREEES
BUNBRERXBRENRZEET
BIDAT ©

WAREEEBANEREES
BEREANKHAE L MBMAER
REBBNGHES% BIAE
EERIENBERIIARE
5,669,00070 M AREAEL B
WEREESEPRITHRAZE
BAAEM R B IR B A 5T 1E5% >
Al REEBERDEINBRERSZA
R #6,689,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 10 FAFRRIA T R EMEKR
RECEIVABLES I8
2020 2019
b Ja 3. 5 —_E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Non-current portion JERENZ 2
Prepayment for township development NEMEIBEENTENRIE
(Note (i) (B EE()) 17,000 17,000
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment #1% B RE &2 ENTENRIE 9,991 9,991
Other prepayments HMFENRIE 1,403 4,209
Deposits for marketing and EiHRMIBEESONES
promotion contracts (Note (ii)) (B &) 52,000 52,000
Rental deposits HEE - 438
Other deposits Hhizs 150 -
80,544 83,638
Current portion RENER
Prepayments BRI 3,866 3,284
Rental deposit HeEEE 917 500
Deposits and other receivables & R EHMEWRIE 6,730 6,061
11,513 9,845
The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits NEEBNFEMNRIE B e R EMEUR
and other receivables are denominated in the following ERNREEUTESEE !
currencies:
2020 2019
B8R “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
RMB AR 91,639 93,045
HK$ BT 418 438
92,057 93,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Prepayment for township development

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into by
the Group with Yongtai Government on 15 September
2017, Yongtai Government agreed to form a long-term
strategic cooperation with the Group regarding the
development and operation of the Township Project.
Under the framework agreement, the Group shall pay
a deposit of RMB50,000,000 to Yongtai Government,
which was intended to be utilised for participating in
open tender auctions to be organised by the Yongtai
Government for land use rights, assets, grant of lease
and/or operation rights circulation within the project

site.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an operation right agreement with the
Yongtai Government for the acquisition of a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities such as tourism,
sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and entertainment
in the operation site at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The consideration of RMB28,000,000
was deducted from the RMB50,000,000 refundable
deposit placed by the Group with Yongtai Government
under the framework agreement. The prepayment of
RMB28,000,000 had been utilised upon completion of
the acquisition on 19 April 2018 and RMB5,000,000
had been refunded by the Government during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining amount of
RMB17,000,000 (2019: RMB17,000,000) is intended to
be utilised for township development and is classified

as a prepayment for township development.

BHMFFHRRMEE

10 FAfITRIE & e H R UL TR
15 (#8)

(i)

NMRTEB F#EMNFEMRIE
BREAEEBAKFZHRBIFNR S
—tFNB+HEBTIZERER
#HOKRHRBUNTRE RS RS
NETE B R AEE T L RIAKES
MEERMG - RBERG R A%
ERAKRHRENZMREAR
#50,000,0007T > #E AR 2 Bk &
BB RRNTIEE BB
THERAE-EE - HERT RS
P E R ENARBIZRE -

HE_Z—+tHF+HBA=+—H
I FE AEBEBKRFBATET L
—EREEGR RNEAEMIKE
AV RS E M PSS St
NETEERE X BB
NE-BEARBREENNREE B
B EERmEEETH NEAR
AR #28,000,0007c c KB ARKE
28,000,000t FE B A BRI IE
RipEEKRTRBUNTEZMHE
BB S ARM50,000,0005TH
Nk - FETRRIE A K 128,000,000
TRZIZE—N\NFOA+HLHWK
BEETRBETIA MARKE
5,000,000 cIREBEZZE—NF
+ZA=+—HIEEERBNE
@o

A ZEBBE+_A=+—H
T&% AR¥17,000,0005T (ZF
—NE: AR17,000,0007T) #
R/NEIEE RS T ERiE 4/ N EM
EIEEMNTBNRIE.

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

10 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 10 FAMHRRIE ~ B & K H fth FEUKR

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i) Deposits for marketing and promotion contracts
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deposits for
marketing and promotion contracts represent cash paid
by the Group to a property developer in the PRC in
relation to exclusive marketing and promotion services
agreements between the Group and the property
developer. Pursuant to the agreements, the Group has
obtained rights as the sole marketing and promotion
services provider for two real estate development
projects owned by the property developer for terms
of 3 years over the selling period of the real estate
development projects. These deposits will, amongst
other terms and conditions, be repayable to the Group

after the Group meet the sales target as stated in the

15 (48)

i) BRRTBEESHNES
N _ECEER_E-NE+Z
B=4+—H &8#EEMmBHEESL
NiZSIEAERE M AEE A Y %=
HEmI I BREH T IGHE
EREHERTE — Y £ E
BENNIBE - RIEZEME K
EEMYEREIMEENME
EHERZERESFEARE
HEEEHERRNE—EHEK
MBEERBIRHEENESN > 21
—HFo R AEBBEINZEREMNT
BENEHER SRR ZERER (U
RIBBREMER LGS EET K

agreements. EEo
11 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 11 £EYEE
Biological assets comprise golden camellia flowers growing EMEECRERH EERNESIESR-
on trees.
2020 2019
ZEZEHE —B—hE&
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®ETT
At 1 January w—A—H 239 =
Transfer to inventories BREEER (239) =
Changes in fair value due to biological EREYEEER
transformation NAREE 211 239
At 31 December K+Z—R=+—H 211 239

As at 31 December 2020, there were approximately 120,000
(2019:120,000) of golden camellia trees plantations. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has harvested
flowers amounted to RMB239,000 and transferred to

inventory.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group's biological assets as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were valued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer who

holds a recognised relevant professional qualification.

The fair value of golden camellia flowers is determined using
a discounted cash flow model based on the expected flower
yield by certain management estimates and judgments
after allowing for harvesting costs, and other costs yet to
be incurred in getting the flowers for sale. Estimates and
judgement in determining the fair value of the golden
camellia growing on trees include the volume and stages
of maturity of the golden camellia flowers, expected selling

price and the discount rates.

The biological assets were classified as Level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer between any levels

during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The management reported directly to the
directors. Discussions of valuation processes and results were

held between management and the valuer.

The management and the directors verified major inputs to
the independent valuation reports and held discussion with
the independent valuer on the valuation basis, processes and

results.

BHMFFHRRMEE

11 EMEE (8)

RARMREXERNBIEXGE
BEEMEXEEN G KRERARAR
EHAEESE_T_TER-_T—A
F+ZR=+—HZEVEEETH
Be

EERNAANEBERETEERBS AR
ERARWEREHERRKFEENE
fth B2 £F B9 5 65 18 1F 1 B 5t R I iR
MHBERTERR@ R ERMKERERE
RABE EEEARELERNE

M2
ERANERIEENGEF RAEETES
TERNEE RN APEE FHERE B &AL
S

EVMEEDBBAABERBERNE=
Ao FRERERB L EEE

MY BREENMES  ~EEEEER
BRBEIGEMETHNLE -EEER
T%ﬁ%%%ﬁi o B E H L EAME A
BrkiERETR-

EEEREEIREB/IUMGEMRENE
ERAMBT B (EEMRGER
E *ir—&nlﬂ% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

12 INVENTORIES 12 &
2020 2019
—ETE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Newsprint and printing consumables R AR K2 ED Rl E #E o 655 774
Golden camellia flowers FIER 239 =
894 774
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included MABABRIUMAHEREINEE
in “Cost of sales” amounted to RMB1,853,000 (2019: A& NE®1,853,000c (Z2—NEF !
RMB2,819,000). AR #2,819,0007T) °
13 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 13 IFEHEME
The Group's properties held for sale includes the following: AEENFELEYESREUTIER
2020 2019
—_TFF “EBE-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETF T
Properties held for sale REHEYE 24,255 25,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estate developers in the PRC. The
Group’s intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as properties held for sale upon
the completion of the advertising sales transaction if the

related properties are ready to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of
the properties with reference to their market value with
the assistance of an independent property valuer. Valuation
methodologies used in the valuation included direct market
comparable approach and income approach which are within
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy respectively.
For direct market comparable approach, observable inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1 included market
price of comparable properties adjusted having regard to
the location, size and nature of the properties (Level 2). For
income approach, unobservable inputs included expected
rent income, growth rate and discount rate (Level 3). There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties
and considered no further impairment provision is necessary
(2019: Nil).

Cash flows associated with the disposal of properties held
for sale are presented under “Operating activities” in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. The gain or loss on
disposal and impairment loss of properties held for sale are
recorded in “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BHMFFHRRMEE

13 HEHEWE (B

SR SR TS RS ) o B S 4t E R 8 7 AL 4
BEERBRIG AEENENRHE

ZEWFE EIL ERBYETHLE
A BRI T E S IHE X 5 R D

REFHENE-

EEBS2RYENTEFEEARER
EHEME - FEFMANGEEL EZE8E
BEEmGHEBRERYEE T2 5B
ARERBERNE_RE=ZMR -HE
BHIGLLEIAMS  IHRBARE (5
—HRARNRERI SETELLBRYE
MHE EREMYEME - KN Rk
BFEOHEE (BEIR -smEms >
AHRBARBOERBAEAERA B
RERINBER (F=R) -AEELEL2R
BtEME  FRAE R - F_MRE

—HRzETESR - RBEE_T-TF
—f—:ﬁ:—i——EIJJ:fEIE’ﬁEEEttE?&
MENREEZRRERFEENE R
HBAFHE-—SHERFE (CTZT—N
FiHE)-

EHERFHENENREERENS
HEEREXRKEEEH T2 L&
RIFHEMENRENBEREFFR
EVENREERESHE2E WK
M—MR R AT 2 ) I RE 8%
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

14 RR{EXHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

R A BREY & Al
BE

2020 2019

—E_BF “EBE-NE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Investment in a network drama — BRI IR ENRE 6,564 6,165

On 8 May 2018, the Group acquired an investment in a
network drama through the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the investment agreement on 22 May 2017,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Supreme Glory Limited
acquired 20% of the income right in a network drama for a
consideration of RMB6,000,000.

The fair value estimation of the investment was based on
the cash flows discounted using a rate based on the market
interest rate and risk premium specific to the investment.
Significant unobservable inputs involved in the fair value
measurement included the expected timing of settlement
and discount rate, which are within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, a fair value gain of
RMB399,000 relating to the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2019: a fair value loss
of RMB8,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET

15 BFRIRIE—FER

2020 2019

—ETE —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREETF T

Trade receivables B 5 R EIE 14,759 12,724
Less: provision for impairment of trade B BRI R EEE

receivables (9,298) (3,163)

Trade receivables — net B o RIRIE—F88 5,461 9,561

The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30
days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the

relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

ERIEREINRERULKRARN
Mo EEHNFIFLEMBEEERER
B30 E365H A Z - AEEMNE ZEUL

MIARBERARNRE DTN T -

2020 2019
—ECIEF —ZT—hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T AREFIT
1-30 days 12308 3,160 8,486
31 - 60 days 31260H 493 112
61 — 90 days 61901 256 84
91 - 180 days 91&180H 917 118
181 — 365 days 181E365H 3,731 1,068
Over 1 year —F 6,202 2,856
14,759 12,724

Less: provision for impairment of trade B BREWSRIERERE
receivables (9,298) (3,163)
Trade receivables — net B ERRIE— 358 5,461 9,561
+AERERAR —_Z_TEER
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15 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in RMB.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation

of the allowance.

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of
RMB9,298,000 (2019: RMB3,163,000) were impaired and
provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
amounts of the provision charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income was RMB6,135,000
(2019: the amounts of the provision charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income was

RMB690,000).

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair

value.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade receivables
of RMB2,000,000 (2019: RMB2,191,000) were directly
written-off to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

15 B 5 EWRIE— 25 (8)

7 £ (8] 55 55 I S IE 10 B T 1 U R
SHEo

AEBERBEKRMFRSEREI
BIEn st ERAEEBE MM E
SRBRERGNEEERBERREREG
BEB -AHERAEZFBHNWE
3.1(b)°

RNIE_EF+_HF=+—H EZE
W IE AR #9,298,000t (ZE—H
£ ANR%3,163,0007t) BERIERTRE
BE-BE_TZHFF+"A=+—H
FFE ReaH2EWRRRNGNEE
A ARM6,135,000c (ZE—A
F REHZERDRIDBNEESE
# AR #690,0007T) °

MR EREUWRIENERMTE  HRE
ERGEEEAREER -
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E>AHAR2,000,000T (ZE—A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET (Continued) 15 BESEKHRIE—FEE (B)
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment on AEBEZEWRBREZRENEZSHU
trade receivables are as follows: S e

2020 2019

—ETHF —B-NE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE®TT AREFT

At 1 January w—B—H 3,163 2,473

Net change in provision for impairment of BRI R ERE

trade receivables pof0) Bk 6,135 690

At 31 December R+_-_B=+—H 9,298 3,163

The provision for impairment of trade receivables have been B REHRIERERBEST AGHEE
included in “General and administrative expenses” in the W RN — R RITEASZIA

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AEE W EFEERIERREER

+AERERAT —=-ssgm 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 16 IRERIBITLHEER
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in AEBNRERBEESEEEBLUTT
the following currencies: BIEstE !
2020 2019
i et 23 —E-AE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFTT

Cash at bank and on hand: RITRFERE .
Denominated in RMB NAR®SHE 12,482 9,253
Denominated in HKD MHETTEHE 400 493
Denominated in USD METHE 7 7
12,889 9,753
Maximum exposure to credit risk a8 EE 12,834 9,708
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITIRERENRBETEHERFZNF
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at A XF R -RITHRENEEERER
bank approximate their fair values. AENEE o
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign BFUARBHENGHRRRAINEUR
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies BB RELUIMNESHENIRITE G RIRTE
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are tH AR [ 78 58 <P R B IR 78 176 B 48 RE 41 BE
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign B IR B K R A o

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

17 SHARE CAPITAL 17 BR&
Equivalent
Nominal  nominal value
Number of value of of ordinary Share
ordinary shares ordinary shares shares premium Total
BERYA BEREE LEREEEME R EE &zt
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARBTR AEBTR AEBTF R
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at 31 RIZ-NERZEZZE
December 2019 and 2020 +ZR=1+-Rz
SREGBIETZEER 100,000,000,000 0.01
Issued: B&#1T:
Ordinary shares at 31 December 2019 RIZF-NF+ZA=+-8Bk
and 1 January 2020 “22Z4-F-HWEER 757,599,030 7,575,990 6,402 36,376 4,778

Issuance of ordinary shares (Note (b)) BTERR (5 () 151,519,806 1,515,198 1,367 12,444 13,811

At 31 December 2020 RIBZEF+°A=+-H 909,118,836 9,091,188 7,769 48,820 56,589

Note: PMESE :

(@)  The company issued 151,519,806 ordinary shares at placing (@ ATRABRZIZIZEHFLATHURE
price of HK$0.101 per share on 10 July 2020 (representing BERRKRMI101EBTE2LBE AR
16.71% of the total issued ordinary shares of the Company as 17151,519,8065% & @ B% (*E’é“‘ﬁ"\ﬁ’/}
enlarged by the issuance) to 2 subscribers. BB THRABEETEBAREHEN

16.71%) °
18 RESERVES 18 (#f&

The details of movement in the Group's reserves are set out AEEFEBENEBFFHNEI103EN

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page SHEREHRK

103:

(a) Capital redemption reserve (o) BRABEEIREE
The capital redemption reserve relates to the fEARBEOHEERA AR ED &
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s own HEAGRMDBER-
shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

18 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Capital reserves

Capital reserves primarily represent capital
contributions to certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the differences between the consideration
and proportionate carrying value of the subsidiary
disposed of where the Group still retains control of the

subsidiary.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the PRC
incorporated companies which are set aside for
future development purpose in accordance with the
regulations in the PRC. The allocation is based on
certain percentages of these companies’ profit for the

year, as reported in their statutory financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the companies’
respective Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous years'
losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to
increase the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the balance after such issue is not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the year
as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations,
to a discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer
to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’

meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 4.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the share premium amounts and the
accumulated deficits of the Group pursuant to the
cancellation of share premium account and the capital
reorganization effected on 10 April 2019.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the value of the
conversion rights related to convertible bonds of the
Company, details of which are shown in Note 23. The
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts upon the conversion of convertible
bonds.

Revaluation surplus

The revaluation surplus relates to the increase in
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
upon transfer to investment properties at its then fair
value.

BHMFFHRRMEE

18 f#fE (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

BE 2 i1
ERE#EEEREBINETYE
WERFTEEN—VIEREZR -#E
THIRR M SEAFT S & 5t BRI

BRI R
BEREGERNEERAETER
RE_S-NENB+HENTZ
R EERTIHEAREAEEEE
Z REtBAIZ ERER
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(B1EF]) » A RBZBBHAERIR
Btk e AT i HIR T 518
AR RBT A B IR TR
B FARREMBRTFLD
ik

iy REEH@ERIRKCERSE
1) BEISHZEE; &

(i RAEEZAUZRER DR
HeG - BETREREKD
wERZ LB -

AR RS

R ESHEBEAEBE AT
mRkESREEZRREEE AR
BRI EE23 o EE A P AR
BESFERFREARETRRMDEE
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ERNAAREBARBEYERIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES 19

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the

ME A El
TREINEAQABDNR _E_EFE+_H

Company as at 31 December 2020

Principal activities

=t+—HNIZEWBRF :

Place of incorporation and  and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
& EREAR Y-S INF] TEEHREENY  CROUIM/BRERET RHZAZt+-BRENERELZ
2020 2019
et 33 “E2-hE
Directly owned subsidiary:
ERBAENRERAR:
Dragon Soar Ltd. The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
Limited liability company the PRC
EHBERRT HERUES EREARE REZR TE (B
Ysolde Group Limited Samoa, Limited liability Investment holding, USD50,000 100% 100%
company the PRC
THEREERRAT BED BEREEAT REER TE 50,0005 7T
Graceful Universe Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
Limited liability company the PRC
BEERERAF EBELHE BREALE REZR +E (Ev
ShiFang Expert Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Human resources, HKD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
THEFBRAT B BRERAA ANER & AT
Glory Peace Limited Samoa, Limited liability Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
REBRRF BED BEREERT REER &% %7
Supreme Glory Limited Samoa, Limited liability Investment holding, USD43,521 100% 100%
company Beijing, the PRC
ERERAT BEL BREEAF REER PELR  43521%%
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
REEENEAR !
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full- line  USD200,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising agency
services, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BRI EEEERAR FERM BREFAD REZHMUES  200,000%7
RERS > PEIEM
Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of printing RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
liability company services, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BNTHEBERAT RERN EREERT RRALENRIRT A 10,000,000
FEEM
Fuzhou ShiFangYuan Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full- line  RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising agency
services, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BETHRESERAT FEEMN BEREEAE RE2AMAEE  AKHS5,000,0007
RER® REEMN
Fujian DaFang Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of full-line RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
liability company advertising services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEAFEEERAHT HRERN BREEAT B2 HUESRE  AKKS,000,0007
FE@M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19

Principal activities

ft B 2B (%)

Place of incorporation and  and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
o ERRAEEYFINV] FTEEHRESME  CROUER/BERE RHZBZ+-BRANERER
2020 2019
k- - 23 “E-NE
Directly owned subsidiary: (Continued)
ERBENMEAR: (@)
Kunming HanDing Printing Technology Consulting ~ Kunming, the PRC, Limited Provision of publishing  RMB10,000,000 - 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company and printing services, (Note a)
Kuming, the PRC (Mfzta)
ERERIBIEMEARRAT FEER EREERT RE R REIRIRT > AKH10,000,0007
FEEH
Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Technology Xiamen, the PRC, Limited Provision of technology RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Duke") liability company promotion and
consultancy services,
Xiamen, the PRC
EMAZESRRERAR (EMHEE) REEF EREERT RARMHEER AE#11,000,0007T
MRS REEM
Fujian HaoBang Real Estate Consulting & Agency  Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Property marketing RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
Co. Ltd. liability company & agency services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEFARERIAERRAD HRERN BREEAT MESHERAERS  ARE10,000,0007
FE@M
Fujian FangKe Network Technology Corporation Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full-line RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
company advertising services &
Property marketing,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEERETREEHRRNHERAR HRERN EREEAT RE2HUEERE  ARE50,000,0007
RS FEREMN
Fujian ShiFang KaiTai Advertisement Technology Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of technology RMB10,000,000 - 100%
Co., Ltd. company promotion and (Note b)
consultancy services, (If#3tb)
Fuzhou, the PRC
BETARRBENKAERAR HRERN EREERT RERMHERER AE10,000,0007T
SARE REEMN
Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, Limited liability Investment holding, HKD100 51% 51%
company Hong Kong
ERTMHBEERERAR &8 BRERAA REZR PEEE 1008
Fujian Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. ~ Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Property marketing RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
liability company & agency services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEATHHEEERERAT HRERN BREEAT MEEHERAERS  ARE10,000,0007
FE@M
Fujian ShiFang Real Estate Investment Consulting Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Property investment RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Co., Ltd liability company consultancy services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEETAHEREERERAT REGN BEREERT %f&ﬁﬁﬁ%%f AE#50,000,0007T
Fuzhou Kungfu Town Scenic Area Development Co., Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Tourism and USD25,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. liability company entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BNXNEEBRREERAS FERM BRETAD TR RS REIEM  25,000,000% 7T
Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC, Limited Tourism and RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
liability company entertainment,
Beijing, the PRC
TREERBARAT HELR EREERF MERZSE REILR  ARES5,000,0007
+AERBERAT T TFFR
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19

Principal activities

B 2B (%)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

Place of incorporation and  and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
b ERRAEEYFINV] FTEEHRESME  CROUER/BERE RHZBZ+-BRANERERD
2020 2019
k- - 23 ZE-hE
Directly owned subsidiary: (Continued)
ERERHEAR : (8)
Zhangpingshi Lianchuang Nongye Fazhan Co., Ltd. ~ Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Tourism and RMB10,000,000 60% 60%
liability company entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BETHARXERERAT RERN EREERT IR RRE > REEN  AR#10,000,0007
Fuzhou Niaoyulin Youle Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Tourism and RMB5,000,000 82% 82%
liability company entertainment,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BNBEMELERAT HRERN EREERT IRERRE REEMN  ARES,000,0007
Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited Provision of mobile RMB10,000,000 100% -
liability company media services, (Note ¢)
Fuzhou, the PRC (5]
BNEBEREERAT HRERN EREERT RULHEERSE  AREK10,000,0007T 100%
HEEM
Huaxian Fangke Real Estate Consulting & Agency  Huaxian, the PRC, Limited Property marketing RMB100,000 51% N/A
Co. Ltd. liability company & agency services, (Note d) TER
Huaxian, the PRC (GED))
BREERNERARRERRAT hEBR BREEAT NEEHERAERS  ARE 100,000 51%
REBH
Special purpose entity:
RHENER:
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Beijing, the PRC, Limited Provision of technology RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company promotion and
consultancy services,
Beijing the PRC
TREEAEHKEERAS RELR BEREERT REZIEER AE 1,000,000
HARE PEILR
Note a: The subsidiary was deregistered on 26 April 2020. Mfeta: ZMBABR -Z_ZFMA
—HABEHsER.
Note b: The subsidiary was deregistered on 12 Jun 2020. Mizth: ZWBREINW -ZZZTHERA+Z
By BE.
Note c: The subsidiary was acquired on 31 July 2020. Wekc: ZMBARARZ-ZZ 2t A
=+—BYH-
Note d: The subsidiary was incorporated on 25 March 2020. Mfzrd: ZMBARR - _ZF=A4
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Material non-controlling interests (a)

Set out below are the non-controlling interests of the

BHMFFHRRMEE

19 B AT (48)

EARIEERED
TXHEHIAEREIF TR

Group:
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Non-controlling interests R E A BRI -
in the subsidiaries:
Fujian Fangke Network Technology BREEEMERERN
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke”) BRAR ((BEEE) 12,848 12,411
Others HAth (5,346) (4,203)
7,502 8,208

Summarised financial information on a

BEEEAXFEREQHNRER

subsidiary with material non-controlling interests BRI I E R E
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXHNEEHAERMEBE
for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that ANEEREZNESWE AN
are material to the Group. MBERE -
Summarised balance sheets for Fujian Fangke EEERENEEAGREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBFT AREFT
Current: TRED
Assets BE 34,706 27,608
Liabilities =K (9,570) (3,205)
Net current assets MEEEFE 25,136 24,403
Non-current: JET B
Assets BE 53,558 55,795
Liabilities =K (52,473) (52,000)
Net assets BEFE 26,221 28,198
+AERBRAT —ZTHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19 EBATE (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EARIEERED (B)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income EEEENEZAWNERTE
for Fujian Fangke
2020 2019
—E-FF —TZ—hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTF T
Revenue & 55,218 20,236
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREFIBIMATEF] (B518) 942 (1,965)
Income tax expense Friginf (48) =
Profit/(loss) for the year FEWEF, (E5i8) 894 (1,965)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 mEig s = -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HEWE, (Bi8) 48458 894 (1,965)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) PDEEIFERERN
allocated to non-controlling interests 2EWE, (B518) 4828 438 (963)

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

BHMFFHRRMEE

19 MIBAR (&

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) BARIEEREZ (B)
Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian EEEENHEREREE
Fangke
2020 2019
—ETHE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities &E2ZBFRBRERNE
Cash generated from operations KEEFPRERS 20 2,711
Interest received BUF S 39 39
Income tax paid EfFTER (21) (71)
Net cash generated from RETEPTE
operating activities IREFEE 38 2,679
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE FTA)
investing activities FriRIRE 2% (1) 487
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEPMARE R (26) -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IRE KIS EHEER
PIIDEE 11 3,166
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#MNREERIFESEEIER
of year 6,500 3,334
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FARMIRE RIS EEIER 6,511 6,500
+HERERAT —ETTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

20 RIEFRISTA
EIEFF SR E @AM T

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTEREE
— to be reversed after more than 12 months — &R iBIE 1218 B & (o] 43,948 49,101
- to be reversed within 12 months — #1218 B R #[al 1,569 1,311
45,517 50,412

BIEFRISIMEEESHINT ¢

The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as

follows:
Fair value
change in
Intangible relation to
assets properties Total
B
BREE AREEE MEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 RIZZ2—hF—HF—H 51,723 - 51,723
Recognised in the consolidated statement R & #f £ E U E RN
of comprehensive income (Note 30) (FF5E30) (1,311) = (1,311)
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-NF
+ZB=+—H 50,412 - 50,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) BT B A7 (MiEE36) 1,396 = 1,396
Revaluation gain for property, plant and ~ #1% - BE R B HEEUE
equipment (Note 7) (MI5E7) = 877 877
Recognised in the consolidated statement & #f 2 E U & &R AR
of comprehensive income (Note 30) (FF5E30) (7,168) = (7,168)
At 31 December 2020 K+ZA=+—H 44,640 877 45,517
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in ATECTEFE+HA=+—H HRAE

respect of estimated tax losses of RMB91,446,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB93,778,000) as it is not probable
that the relevant subsidiaries of the Group will generate
taxable profit to utilise the tax losses in the foreseeable
future. Such tax losses have an expiry period of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

21 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 21 BESEMARIE HfthEFIE
ACCRUED EXPENSES KEtRX
2020 2019
—TFF “_B-hAEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Trade payables gZlem=E 11,781 ¢ 8,106
Other payables and accrued expenses: HME A HRIEREFTRZ !
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities — FEFT AR S &
Hith&a | 8,493 7,707
Accrued salaries and welfare fEstir & RER 12,303 7,954
Value added tax and other taxes payable BERREMENRIE 1,301 3,277
Other payables HhpEI I8 67,060 66,128
Deposits from customers KERRANEE 1,448 1,317
Contract liabilities (Note 5) HHaE (MEEs) 9,741 6,717
100,346 93,100
Less: Non-current portion B FERIHAER
Other payables HMENRIE (52,000) (52,000
_____ R 41,100
60,127 49,206
+HERERAT —ETTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

21

22

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued)

Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 days
to 365 days after end of the month in which the relevant

purchase occurred.

21 BEEMMRIA HthEARIA

K& (&)

HEEE 4G T B TRARR

EREIMER

R LR ER 3 AR o (5 EHA 1R tHAE R
REERMERES N FI30BE365F

Pavas
Feo

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice B EAMIEREZEZELANRR DN
date is as follows: mr:

2020 2019

323 —B-NE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE®TT AREFT

1 - 30 days 12308 2,593 4,031

31 - 90 days 31F90H 9209 390

Over 90 days 90H MU 8,279 3,685

11,781 8,106

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all

denominated in RMB.

FEREZRARENREEZEHUA

RUsHHE-

BORROWINGS 22 &
2020 2019
—ETHE “E-NE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Secured bank borrowings BiEFRIBITE
— current (Note (i)) —BOHA (B 5E()) 17,410 4,640
Unsecured bank borrowings EERIBITER
— current (Note (i) —BDER (B 5E(ii) ) 450 -
Other borrowing — current (Note (iii) Hanfgzx—BIER (FY %) - 1,590
17,860 6,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (i):

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and excluding the repayment

on demand clause is as follows:

BHMFFHRRMEE

21 f&mk (&)

ihE=20F

BRIRERMEMHATERA Y > LHMERE
EREBEF LHBTERNIHAOT

i

I

2020 2019

ZEEHF ey

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETT AREBFT

Within 1 year —FR 17,229 2,229
Between 1 and 2 years —EWME 181 2,230
Between 2 and 5 years MERF - 181
17,410 4,640

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional

right to call the loans at any time.

The Group's bank borrowings are secured by the ownership rights
of the properties and the personal guarantee of Zheng Bai Ling and
Zhang Hui, a key management and the spouse of a key management

of a subsidiary of the Group.

The Group's bank borrowings carried fixed and variable rates and
are denominated in RMB. The fixed rate is 3.98%. The variable rates
subject to either (1) quarterly adjusted floating interest rate of 1.15
times the benchmark loan interest rate as prescribed by the People’s
Bank of China for loans of a similar length (2) 2-months adjusted
floating interest rate of the benchmark loan interest as prescribed
by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a similar length. The
effective interest rate for the year range from 3.85% to 7.40%
(2019: 7.31%) per annum.

RZEZZ2F+_A=+—H BARZER
TERNERERBEHRAEBREREER
o BT ERIT AR R BB B IR E R
ERBERDERRPAGE

FEMBITRERAZYENFT AR UKRALE
E—RHNBAENEEEEASMBENE
2EEASNEMERIERHENEAERELR
o

AEBRITERIZEEF ZE R ZHF) 5t
B UARBHE -BEFEAR3I8ETH
FEABNDFEARRBRTHEUEHERRE
HEEERFENIAE SHE; H(Q)
FEARBOTHEUFEHERRENEES
FAE GMERAAE FRNBEREFENT
385BE7A0E (ZT—NFE: 7318

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

22

23

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (ii):

As at 31 December 2020, the balance is unsecured, carries an
interest rate at 4.5% per annum with a term of 1 year, and is

repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in RMB.
Note (iii):

As at 31 December 2019, the balance is unsecured, carries an
interest rate at 6% per annum with a term of 2 years, and is
repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in RMB. The

balance was fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the
convertible bond subscription agreement with TopBig
International Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, an Executive
Director and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 3% per
annum convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent

to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is
HK$0.24 per conversion share. The Convertible Bonds
matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of

the Convertible Bonds and ending on the maturity date.

On 23 April 2019, the Convertible Bonds were issued. The
initial value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond

of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 23

The convertible bonds are presented as follows:

BHMFFHRRMEE

AR ES (&)
AHRESF 25T ¢
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

At 1 January w—B—H

Liability component on initial recognition ML EEBNaER D
Interest accrued (Note (a)) FEsHF) S (FY5E(a))
Conversion during the year (Note (b)) FRER FEEDb))
At 31 December w+ZB=+—H
Notes:

(@) Interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest

rate of 11.5% per annum to the liability component.

(b)  The Subscriber partially converted the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of RMB38,441,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 17).

150,669 =
- 169,652
17,479 11,511
- (30,494)
168,148 150,669

MI5E

(@) HMNERXNHEBHAEHIHEAINS
ENERERERFESH -

by HEZZ—HAhE+ZBE=1+—HLEF

B> RBABIEBRASHEAARKE
38,441,000t AT AR &S (BIEE17) ©

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

24 |LEASE 24 {HE
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REHEEERREIDZMIEA
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet show the following EHEEEBREVUTERA
amounts relating to leases: BE2MIE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
RZZEZEF RIZT-NF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Right-of-use assets EREEE

Buildings BF 1,008 2,608

Lands T 4,203 4,672
5,211 7,280

Lease liabilities HEaE

Current BN EA 2,438 3,010

Non-current JERNER 5,177 9,215
7,615 12,225

No addition to the right-of-use asset for the year ended BE_ZT_ZF+__HA=+—H

31 December 2020. (2019: RMB5,029,000). tEEFERAEEEL®IZM. (Z

T—NF : AR¥5,029,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 LEASE (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet (Continued)

The Group recognised an impairment charge reflecting
the aggregate difference totalling RMB239,000
(2019:RMB5,734,000) recognised for the right-of-use
assets for the year ended 31 December 2020. These
impairment charges were recorded in the Group's
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within (Note
26).

"General and administrative expenses"

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
show the following amounts relating to leases:

BHMFFHRRMEE

24 HE (&)
() MEHBEEARERERZNRE

(&)
BE_T_TF+-RA=+—H

(ii)

IFFE AEBMEAEE ERD
RMEEZENREERIEEAR
#%239,0007t (ZE—HL&F : AR
5,734,0007T) c % ERERZETA
rEEEHIZAREERNT—KK
TEREZIA (FI5E26) ©

REHEZERERABEEZMR
5

£33

afcElRERZNNUTAREA
BS2IE

2020 2019
—_= —VE ;<_j-L£E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT
Depreciation charge of FREEETERS
right-of-use assets:
Buildings gF 640 2,492
Land T 306 229
946 2,721
Gain on early termination on leases REAIEAEN WS 1,947 -
Interest expense HERX
(included in finance costs) GONZE Y 478 621
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group BHE_Z_ZF+”"HA=+—H
recognised a gain on early termination on leases EFE AEEEIBREEXRLERAE
totalling RMB1,947,000 (2019: Nil). M & H ARE1,947,0007T (Z
T—NF 8| o
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended BHE_ZT-_ZHF+"_A=+—H
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were EZE—-hE+ZA=+—HLt

RMB2,235,000 and RMB7,944,000, respectively.

EF:RT—*H%Z}EAE )|L||:E|“._, éaﬁ/nju
AANRBE2 2350000 & AR
7,944,0007T ©

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR

217



218

25 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

25 HttWARE iz~

(LOSS) - NET (E518) — 348
2020 2019
—TFF “EBE-NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Other income: HMKA :
Compensation income mEWA = S
Government grants (Note a) B %R (Mf5ta) 2,844 273
Sundry income HIEUA 100 63
2,944 336
Other gain/(loss): Hthlk s~ (B548) -
Fair value gain on biological asset EMEEZ A RERTR 211 239
Other losses Hhks18 = (321)
21 (82)
Note [
(@) The Group obtained and recognised as income government (@) BE_FTTEFE+-_B=+—HL®H

grants of RMB2,844,000 (2019: RMB273,000) from the Fujian

government authority for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

26 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

26 BMEHIDHRZ
FRETSMATASRETR  GHA) U TE

following: BBAR:
2020 2019
—TTEHF ZE-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBFT
Cost of newspaper and public vehicles MR BB B EES A
advertising
- Media costs —IREB A A 5,557 2,391
Cost of printing services: EN Rl AR 75 A A -
— Raw materials —EME 1,853 2,819
— Other costs —H A 408 519
Cost of sales of agricultural products HEBERMAE 50,778 76,372
Depreciation of property, ME -BERREBEITE
plant and equipment (Note 7) EX 4,911 5,434
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 24)  fEFBEBEITE (HEE24) 946 2,721
Amortisation (Note 9) e (9EE9) 5,830 5,468
Auditor’s remuneration Z S EMBN & 3,821 4,147
Gain on early termination of lease REXRIEHEENN G (1,947) =
Marketing expenses EiH X 6,366 10,839
Operating lease charges in respect of BRLHRIEFH
land and buildings REHEWRE 634 222
Net loss on disposal of property, HEVE BEREZEBE
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) B 5 (M95E33(b)) 6,533 142
Gain on disposals of properties held for sale  HERFEHEY W (203) =
Net change in provision for impairment of & 5 e W IE R B B
trade receivables (Note 15) 2E) 58 (fFsE15) 6,135 690
Provision for impairment of goodwill (Note 9)  FH22 g (E B (M5£9) - 66,058
Provision for impairment of | EERERSE (5E9)
intangible assets (Note 9) 21,546 -
Net change in provision for TR ERAEREES T
impairment of financial guarantee (408) 1,026
Net change in provision for BNEERERESEESFEE
impairment of contract assets (28) 96
Provision for impairment of property, ME- -BRERZERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FF5E7) 6,145 2,208
Provision for impairment of right-of-use assets 1 I & E R (E B H 239 5,734
Legal and professional fee FEREEER 827 2,595
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 E I FRIE i 2,000 2,191
Write-off of other receivables HL 1t & U =R I8 1 2 - 236
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) SNEERS IR, (Wiam) JBEE 3,671 (3,560)
Employee benefit expenses EEREFHX
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 27) (BIEEFMNE) (:F27) 31,485 44,274
Business tax =E 101 287
+AERBRAT —ZTHEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 27 EERFEX (QIEEEMHS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2020 2019
—ECEH —E—N=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Salaries and other allowances & Ko ELthwe R 29,771 41,243
Defined contribution plan RE MG 7 26
Social security costs HRER 1,472 1,773
Retirement scheme contribution RRETEIHER 235 1,232
31,485 44,274

(a) Five highest paid individuals () EREE#HAL
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five BHE_S"_EHF+-A=+—H
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the tEE-AEFREESHALE
Group included 2 directors (2019: 3 directors), whose EMLEE (CS—NEF =%E
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented H)  HENMEE L X KHFE40
above and Note 40. The emoluments paid/payable to P23 Mo R - REBEEZS
the remaining 3 (2019: 2 individuals) individuals during —EF+-B=+—HILEE B
the year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows: i/ ERGT=%(C5—NF:

mE) ALBBEWT -

2020 2019
—E°EHE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETF T AEBTT

Salaries and other allowances e R E 4 RL 1,482 1,260
Defined contribution plan REMRRETE 39 37
1,521 1,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 27
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the

Group fall within the following bands:

BHMFFHRRMEE

EERIAX (BEEEME)

(%)

(a) ERBEHFAL @
HE_S_SER_F—NEF
A= t+—BLEE FEES

BFATHB SN F FHIRE :

Number of individuals

AZ
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hE
Nil to HK$500,000 0375 E500,0003 7T 2 =

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,00 1B TE
1,000,000 7T 1 2
3 2
28 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 28 EAREFIETE

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately
RMB235,000 (2019: RMB1,232,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

FEBETERINKNBATNESS
3t 75 T BUR PR HE RS o RAR AR & 51 81 BY
B -BRNBABSAREEELRHE
RIBNEFTEDEAHPRERAREEE
MR DU R IRE R o #h 75 i BT K
HARARNBATDNMBERAERKRK
BRAREBENRAENETZ ARKRER
BIFL R RBINE S E B E—BEHRE
StEELPTAREBYHRR

HE_FS_FEF+A=+—H1IL
FE MEEENHIARBAABAR
#235,000c (ZZF—hhF: AR
1,232,0007T) ° &2 W] B IER
DREFEREBEMER

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

29 FINANCE COSTS - NET

29 MFEBA—FEE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ABEBTT
Finance income: BRSO -
Interest income on short-term bank deposits ~ fZHISR{TEMBIFI S A 5 62
Finance costs: IR AA -
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERZFEMZ (456) (333)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaGEZHERX (478) (621)
Interest expense on promissory notes AREEHRZFEMAZ - (2,523)
Interest expense on loans from Eali k=R I RN
a related party - (1,297)
Loss on early redemption of RREBELARTRENEIE
promissory notes - (9,632)
Interest expense on convertible bond AR ESHEHX (17,479) (11,511)
Other Hh - (115)
Total finance costs AR5 RN A 4B 5B __(18,413)  (26,032)
Finance costs — net AR A A — 558 (18,354) (25,970)
30 INCOME TAX CREDIT 30 FRiSRIESR
2020 2019
ZEEEF —_E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current income tax expense BERFR1S IR 2
Mainland China enterprise income tax H B A B 2P E R
- Current tax expense —BEARIER X (48) (6)
— Overprovision in prior years —RiIBEFEBREEE 11,507 3,792
11,459 3,786
Deferred income tax credit FIEFRIS MR 7.168 1,311
18,627 5,097

The Group has no assessable income arising in or derived

from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2020

and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 30
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as

BHMFFHRRMEE

FRGRIER (8

A& E TS RATAS BN RIERIR A E
FARESEREER A G EIEMA K
RPOREMHEER SR BNEE
m

follows:

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREEF T

Loss before income tax FRPTS IR AT RS 18 (93,166) (148,620)

Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable BHEANRSER A EeERE
to profits of the entities in the respective wA B 5 AR E E B
jurisdictions (Note) I8 (fFsE) 20,714 27,259

Tax effects of: MTEENRERE !

Income not subject to tax R G N 1,122 1,024
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AEHIMR R (7,198) (20,540)
Tax losses for which no deferred income RIERIRIEFR RN EE

tax asset was recognised MR IER 18 (7,681) (6,683)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised R Z AR FESE N
tax losses RIEEIE 163 245
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREE 11,507 3,792
18,627 5,097
Note: W 5E

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.2% (2019:
18.3%). The increase is mainly caused by less operation for
subsidiaries in Hong Kong which were entitled to lower applicable

tax rate.

MEFHBERRER222% (ZE—NF!
18.3%) - MEX LRI EHNARZARME
BARENEBWBABREFTRMPAE -

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

31 LOSS PER SHARE 31 BREE

(a) Basic
Basic loss per share for the years is calculated by
dividing the loss attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

(a)

B
FRANBRELABRDEEAAT
FREERGEREUFREET
BHERMEFIHETE-

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Loss attributable to owners of KABIFRBEERELEE
the Company (RMB'000) (ANRHF 1) (73,784) (139,165)
Weight average number of EEITRMINETFHIH
shares in issue, including bonus (BIEFEANTR)
element (thousands) (Fh2) 829,830 686,214
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BREAREIE
(BRAR) (0.0889) (0.2028)
(b) Diluted (b) #5%

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: same).

EQE&%E@?EEE%W?HT%
BREOMETFHEUBRRAA
EEBETENEBRER

%ﬁwﬁrﬁ BE_Z_ZTHF+_H

=+—HBLEFEE -ARFLER

BEREXENEBR CE—N
EWEE)O

32 DIVIDEND 32 B2

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

33 WEMERME

Cash used in operations (o) BEXFEFIARE
2020 2019
—EEE “E-NE
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
ik ARETR ARETT
Loss before income tax BREFIBIS AT 18 (93,166) (148,620)
Adjustments for: B IBELAR
Depreciation for property, ME-BERREBINE
plant and equipment 7 4,911 5,434
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FRARBEENE 24 946 2,721
Amortisation for intangible assets A E 9 5,830 5,468
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME -BREK
plant and equipment RENEIRFE 26 6,533 142
Net gain on disposal of properties HEFELENERN
held for sale WmBEE 26 (203) =
Net change in provision for B RWGIERERE
impairment of trade receivables HH)FER 26 6,135 690
Write off of other receivables L1 FE W RR I i 85 26 - 236
Net change in provision for GHNEBENERE
impairment of contract assets BEFEE 26 (28) 96
Provision for impairment of goodwill ~ BEKEFEERERE
and intangible assets 26 21,546 66,058
Provision for impairment of ME-BE M
property, plant and equipment RERERE 26 6,145 2,208
Provision for impairment of FTHEEERNERE
right-of-use assets 26 239 5,734
Gain on early termination of lease REKLIAENERR 26 (1,947) =
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) on REEBIME
operating activities B8 ) 26 3,671 (3,560)
Finance income A 29 (59) (62)
Finance costs M E R 29 18,413 26,032
Fair value gain on biological assets EMBENANERE 25 (211) (239)
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 FE T I i 35 26 2,000 2,191
Net fair value (gain)/loss on financial ~ AREKEZRARY
assets at fair value through TREENANE
profit or loss (z) /E518 3% (399) 8
Share of losses of an associate [EEBE AT - 1,366
trERARAE —s-sssn 225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Cash used in operations (Continued)

33 WEMEBRME (4)

(o) REXBFAARE (@)

2020 2019
ZEIEE =
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
ik ARETT ANEEBF T
Changes in working capital: EEBTET .
— Trade receivables —B5ERAIA (487) (4,584)
— Contract assets —GHNEE 252 (1,667)
— Inventories -EF&8 119 646
- Prepayments, deposits and other —FBNRE-EER
receivables Hth W= IE 2,311 (56,568)
- Amounts due from related parties —FEURREE AN TFIE (159) (294)
— Trade payables —BREMRIE 2,254 3,509
— Other payables and accrued —HMEMRIER
expenses FEstREZ 6,991 56,274
- Financial guarantee contracts —BEREYN (408) 1,026
- Amounts due to related parties —EIRIEANLFIE 2,833 9,845
Cash used in operations KEEBRARS (5,938) (25,910)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEME- -WRERZE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

GHRERERTHEME KE
RERBHIFMERIBEEE !

comprise:
2020 2019
—EEE “E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEBBTT
Net carrying amount (Note 7) IRmEEE (fsE7) 6,533 629
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME- BB REHN
plant and equipment (Note 26) 518988 (MY5t26) (6,533) (142)
Cash consideration from disposal of HEME BERREN
property, plant and equipment RERE = 487
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, disposal W HE—_E2-—=24+-_F=+—H

of property, plant and equipment of RMB6,527,000

represents properties demolished in Beijing Shihua

Caves Niaoyulin Project by the government. No
consideration was received/receivable by the Group on
these demolished properties at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

Non-cash transactions
For the year ended 31 December 2020, no major non-

cash transactions occurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the principal

activities are:

o Utilisation of prepayment of RMB1,770,000 for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 10)

o Utilisation of prepayment of RMB3,000,000 for

acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 10)

o Issuance of convertible bonds has been
partially set-off with loans from a related party
of RMB89,740,000 and promissory notes of
RMB92,500,000 (Note 23)

. Addition of right-of-use assets of RMB5,029,000
(Note 24)

BHMFFHRRMEE

33 WEMERME (&)

(c)

FRERH
BE_T_TF+-RB=+—H
LEFE TEZBEFBFEER
5o

BE_Z-hE+-HB=+—H
FE TBEHA

e HRWEYE BMELRME
BITERT=IE AR 1,770,000
7t (BF5E10)

e BFAUWB-—HEMKWBAIM
FE{T R IE A R #3,000,0007T
(fz£10)

e BUUMKREBESCDHEAK
FEMARIEKS9,740,000
TURERLEBEBAR
92,500,0007T T LA &8 70 4 #4
(MF3%23)

e MNMHEREEEARIE
5,029,0007% (FfEE24)

+AEZERBERAT —Z_ETEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)
(d) Net debt reconciliation

The following section sets out an analysis of net debt

and the movements in net debt for each of the years

33 WEMERME ()

(d) EFFEHEK
UT&#HINEHFBROTREZET]
FEEHFERNES -

presented.

2020 2019
ZEEHF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Net debt B35 ARETT ANREFT

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) HEKRIREEEEB
(Myzx16) 12,889 9,753
Bank borrowings RITER (17,860) (4,640)
Other borrowing HfEmk = (1,590)
Convertible bonds AR ES (168,148) (150,669)
Lease liabilities HEa®E (7,615) (12,225)
Net debt B35 (180,734) (159,371)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

33 WEMERME (&)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (d) EFEFIEHER (B)
Cash Loans from
and cash Bank Other  Promissory arelated  Convertible Lease
equivalents  borrowing  borrowing notes party bond liabilities Total
RERAg
$EER BABR HbBR AREE  WEAER  URREF 0 AE8R @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARBTR
Net debt as at 1 January 2019 RZE—fE—F-A
HERSE 33,880 (6,877) (1,500) (81,552) (87,132) - - (143181)
Cash flows Reng (24,136) 2,231 - - (2,564) (33,510) 7,944 (50,029)
Non-cash movements: FReEy:
Initial adoption of IFRS16 N ERERHHERS
ERIZ16% - - - - - - (14,476) (14,476)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE 9 - - 1,207 1277 - #3) 2450
Other non-cash movements EftFR2EE S - (90) 80,345 88419 (117,159) (5,650) 45,865
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 HZE—NE
TZA=1-H
NEKTE 9,753 (4,640) (1,590) - - (150,669) (12,225) (159,371)
Net debt as at 1 January 2020  RZZZFE-F-H
NEKTE 9,753 (4,640) (1,590) - - (150,669) (12,225) (159,371)
Cash flows Rene 1,868 (13,203) 1,590 - - - 2,235 (7.510)
Non-cash movements: ReEy.
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BNELE (W536)

(Note 36) 1,289 - - - - - - 1,289
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SNEZEE (21) - - - - - 2 1
Other non-cash movements EtEReEs - (17) - - - (17479) 2353 (15,143)
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 K -E_Fi

tZE=1-H
NEKIE 12,889 (17,860) - - - (168,148) (7,615) (180,734)
+rERERAS —S-sasxm 229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor

34 KiE
(o) WEHEEXRE-(FAHAA

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under FAHEHRERENERREMR
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BUGRAERENT -
2020 2019
ZETEF —E-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AEE®TT ANREFT
Not later than 1 year —&ELF 1,205 2,000
Later than 1 year and not later than —FUERAEFUTF
5 years 5,323 4,000
More than five years AEME 1,466 -
7,994 6,000
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEZAKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RBEHRBITNERERAE
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BzEARERABEZWT :
liabilities is as follows:
2020 2019
—EIEHE —F-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 4,266 4,266

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,

parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party

has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant

influence over the Group in making financial and operating

decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals

(being members of key management personnel, significant

shareholders and/or their close family members) or other

entities and include entities which are under the significant

influence of related parties of the Group where those parties

are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

(a)  The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties

that had transactions or balances with the Group

BHMFFHRRMEE

35 AEALTRS (@)

KRBEERR ZEREBEALRSES
RAEXEHBRETRRAEREKEE
AT HRBEEBERET

(o) AATEEDA UTFAT M@
ABRBE-_E_SE+_8
S+—ALEERNEAERE

during the year ended 31 December 2020:

RENFEEHFNBEAL !

Name Relationship with the Group

%iE R SAREER R

Mr. Chen Zhi Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") of the Group (Note a)

BRELE RABPITES /REBTBAER (Hzta)

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling

BrE YL

Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd

BETAHBBRMARAS

Fujian Lanting Network Technology
Holding Limited Company

EERRNEABERRNBERAT

TopBig International Development Limited

ATEHREEBRAT
Mr. Yu Shi Quan

R ETE

Mr. Chen Wei Dong
PRER L

Ms. Chen Min
BRELL £

Spouse of the Executive director of the Company/Chief
Executive Office of the Group

RABPITES AEBTHRBNE RS

Controlled by the Executive director of the Group

RAEENITESZES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

rEE-FNBAENTIEZRE

A company controlled by the Executive Director of
the Company

AARBRITESEZEGRN—BAE

Executive director of the Company/Chief Financial
Officer of the Group

ERBHTESR AEBEEVBEE

Non-executive director of the Company

KRABIFPITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RABFFRITES

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AEALR S (1&)

(Continued)

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the (a) XABEFERA UTAAE
following companies/individuals were related parties ANBRBEE_Z-_ZEHF+°H
that had transactions or balances with the Group —t+—HIEFEREAREEHETT
during the year ended 31 December 2020: (Continued) 5N EEEGRNEEAL D (8
Name Relationship with the Group
7B S E B AR A
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
BEREBERRAS rEE-FENBEATNTEIERR
Ms. Chan Ching Vi Key management of the Group
BREFHEYL L rEEFEEEAE
Ms. Chen Xiao Min Key management of the Group
RN+ FEEFEEERAS
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling Key management of the Group
ERiREe T TEEFEEEAES
Mr. Cai Jian Quan Independent non-executive director of the Company
sEERLE RKRABBIUFNITES
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Independent non-executive director of the Company
BEaCEE KABVEBIUIFNITES
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry Independent non-executive director of the Company
=M@AKE RRABBIUFNITES
Mr. Chen Ye Son of Mr Chen Zhi, Executive director of the Company/

Chief Executive Officer of the Group
BeREE ST RABDPITES FAEBTHERRSEEZTF
The above names of certain related parties companies LW ETFREEALT RANEX
represented the best effort by management of the HTBHARABEEEMUNEF XS
Company in translating their Chinese names as they do WMEODVEMER REZEERMEA
not have official English names. T/ RBEMEEE T
Notes: B 5T
(a)  Appointed as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019 (@ MIZE—NE+ANHEZER

RRBTBARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties:

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following transactions were
undertaken by the Group with related parties during
the year ended 31 December 2020:

BHMFFHRRMEE

35 EALRSH (@)

(b) ERAEALETHRS:
PR B RREMBOFTIREESN
AEEREE_Z-TFE+A
ST HLEFERBEATES

U5 :
2020 2019

=t =t
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Key management compensation FEBEEASFHM 5,188 8,038
Lease payment to a related party m—AEATHEERS 465 465
5,653 8,503

Balances with related parties

(c) EREALFBERLEER

2020 2019
—EEHE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Amounts due from related parties - FEURRAZE A L FIE

non-trade —JEES

Key management of the Group FEBTEBIEAB 1,273 1,114

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AEALXRS (B)
(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) ERMEALTHEBNLLER (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balances are N _ECEERZE-—AE+TC
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. B=+—B #&HAEREHF 22

AR E KEE ©

2020 2019
—EZEF —E—hE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBFT AEEBTT

Amounts due to directors: FE(TEERIE -
Mr. Chen Zhi BREFE 9,724 3,631
Mr. Yu Shi Quan RS E 1,235 1,376
Ms. Chen Min PR £ 150 30
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry =ML 150 30
Mr. Cai Jian Quan HEESTE 150 30
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BE{Ck4E 150 30
Mr. Chen Wei Dong PREER L 150 30
11,709 5,157
Amounts due to related parties: FE{TRAEANLRIA :
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited HEES{EEIEBREAT 127 127
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling ESrEe it 458 229
Fujian Lanting Network Technology gl e N g
Holding Limited Company BRAE 554 1,030
Mr. Chen Ye eR BB S A 458 3,930
13,306 10,473
The balances due to directors and related parties are ENEERMEATHNERAE

BF - RERILEBEERH I
ARAEEAEEZREEALH
BEWREE -

unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the

Group and the directors and related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 31 July 2020, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd (“Fuzhou Mobile”)
at a consideration of RMB13,960,000. The acquisition was
completed on 31 July 2020.

Goodwill of approximately RMB7,253,000 arose from the
acquisition as the purchase consideration included the
amounts in relation to the benefit of management expertise
and expected synergies of Fuzhou Mobile which cannot be
recognised separately from goodwill as they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for

income tax purpose.

BHMFFHRRMEE

36 EHEH

WE—RMfERR

N _E_EFtEtRA=+—H KER—
HEEE2ENBE S —2EBIE =
ST ERE MNEERMNE S ERE
BRAT (TEMBE) BI100%8# > 1t
B4 AR%13,960,000c- WEEEERE
RIEZEF+tB=+—H=Eme

WEEEMEEFABEAEBNEEL
ANER#7,253,000c BIFEBMNBEN
BIEERKTERGEIMEN @B MR
EHoMAMMEEZEEESMAER
BERERHEETAFE AR ELEEN
BREE - BMECRINFIERHRITA
EIOBRFTISAR

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Confinued) 36 LA (@
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) W ig—rEME AT (48)
The following table summarises the consideration paid and TEREE B B R UK B AR RY
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed FTNEEERTAEEBENRQNE !

recognised at the acquisition date:

As at 31 July 2020 A _ECEFLHA=+—H RMB'000
AR¥TF T
Consideration paid: B HRE : 13,960

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired, — FrUX B8 BT 8 5! & E K Fr R IE B EH

and liabilities assumed: BT 2,492

— Property, plant and equipment —ME-BERZE 527

— Intangible assets —ELEE 5,582

— Account receivables —FEWBR =X 2,214

— Other receivables —HhEWRIE 916

— Cash and cash equivalents —HE&EKRIBEE£HEEB 1,289

— Account payables — IR (1,421)

— Accruals and other payables —EsTERREME L RIE (1,004)

— Deferred tax liabilities —IRIERIEEE (1,396)
Total identifiable net assets A#pEEFERE 6,707
Goodwill 5SS 7,253
RMB’'000

AR¥TF T

Cash consideration BEME 13,960
Cash and cash equivalent in subsidiaries acquired P EM B AT NIRERIREFEIER (1,289)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in T AREEFFAEREREZEE R

cash flows from investing activity HWEEEBERMH P 12,671
For the acquired businesses, management engaged an MPTWBEEMEs  EEEZREE I
independent valuer in assisting the valuation of the BE Ut #HNEEREER
identifiable assets and liabilities as at the acquisition date. WihE B HARI(E(E
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37

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The acquired businesses contributed revenue of
RMB5,692,000 and net profit of RMB443,000 recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period from 1 August 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Had Fuzhou Mobile been consolidated from 1 January 2020,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2020 would show pro-forma loss
for the year of RMB75,018,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 "Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which

requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group’s control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group’s financial

position.

The Group reviews for any significant outstanding litigations
in order to assess the need for provisions. Among the factors
considered are the nature of the litigation, legal processes
and potential level of damages, the opinions and views
of the legal counsel, and the management’s intentions to
respond to the litigations. To the extent the estimates and
judgements do not reflect the actual outcome, this could
materially affect the results for the year and the financial

position.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no

material contingent liabilities.

36

37

BHMFFHRRMEE

EHaM (@

B-Z_ZF/\A—HEEE-T_%F
E+ZA=+—BHBE FRREEBE

BRI & AR #5,692,00070 &3 &M A
§W443 0007 REHEmWN @R AHE

HENBHE _E_ZEF—H—HiE
EEAR BEBEE_ZE_ZTF+_4
—t+—HIEEENEGHZ2EREREH
BERNBEEEEAR75,018,0007T°

NERE
AEEERARE
REEMRNEEE WIS EERED

BREREAE MEDEAFHEA
3117 o

STEERISE375% TR

EREFEELEERT EEFERESARE
BIFREBPTAEIERIFIRIRFFHEE
HEFDEFEETMI TR SR
BENEAR - EMEmMARAERNIME
MR ERE-—BEBHR 9 ENEAEE
IR RERERTE -

FERGERTAEROTRTR > U
BEP RESRERB -FIEENE
%ETEDFF’/\E/HEE BERENERRE
FREBEKF EREBNERNR®E
DU B 32 g 5 Bl FE & SR B B ) o i fil 51
RIARFERBREEER A ERE
FEFRNEERGHIRIT

S TETEBERFE-NAE+TZR

=t+—B AERTESERHRERE-.

+TAHERERAT —T_ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

38

39

LITIGATION
Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Fanxing”), a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a lease
agreement with the landlord, the land owner of the project
site for the Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin Project. The
landlord filed a claim against Beijing Fanxing claiming that
Beijing Fanxing failed to fulfil its responsibilities under the
strategic cooperative agreement and seeking to rescind the
strategic cooperative agreement and the lease agreement
entered into between Beijing Fanxing and the landlord. As at
31 December 2020, the Group considers that Beijing Fanxing
has good prospects of defending the claims in related to
rescinding of the lease agreement and the legal proceedings
are unlikely to result in rescinding of the lease agreement as
well as any material outflow of economic benefits from the

Group.

POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

The Group has obtained a borrowing facility of
RMB20,000,000 from its shareholder and the entire amount
has been drawn on 1 April 2021. The borrowing will be
repayable in two years from the date of drawdown with an

interest rate of 5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

40 ZATINEBEERBRKHE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY £ E)
2020 2019
—EIEHE —EF—hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
NS AR%T T AREF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBATNKE 19 120,538 137,417
120,538 137,417
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE R E At
&R 1A 332 192
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENCIE S 134,990 142,847
Cash and cash equivalents REeMIREEEEB 24 33
01853868 143,072
Total assets mEE 255,884 280,489
EQUITY HEm
Equity attributable to owners AR AEGLER
of the Company
Share capital [N 7,769 6,402
Share premium AR mE 48,820 36,376
Other reserves Hh A a 189,799 189,799
Accumulated deficits REtEs 4l a (185,578) (117,035)
Total equity TS 4EER 60,810 115,542
+hERERAR —=-—z=EgR 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

2% (&)

40 FAFNEBEERBRRRHE

2020 2019
—ECEHE “E—NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
NS AR T AREFIT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Convertible bonds ARG ES 168,148 150,669
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,355 3,074
169,503 153,743
Current liabilities REIBEE
Other payables Hith (I w18 7,415 7,661
Amounts due to directors RS E R IE 11,559 2,273
Amounts due to subsidiaries R EATRIE 5,831 3
Amounts due to related parties FETRAZE AN TFIB 608 259
Lease liabilities HEa®RE 158 1,008
_____ 25571 11,204
Total liabilities FEN =R 195,074 164,947
Total equity and liabilities EankaBEEEE 255,884 280,489

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 8 April 2021 and was signed on its

behalf:

Chen Zhi
BRE

Director

EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R RMIEE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40 AREINEBEEERERRHIE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 28 (&)
(Continued)
Note a: Reserve movement of the Company Mieta: ARBIWFEBES
Accumulated Other
deficits reserves
Rt HihfEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AR®TF T
As at 1 January 2019 KZZE-AE—HF—H (879,320)
Loss for the year FANEE (121,311) =
Capital reorganisation feA~E 4 883,596 155,281
Equity component of convertible bonds BETAIMKRESZ
issued, net of transaction costs HmEn o RS MR - 42,002
Conversion of convertible bonds BMTIARES 5 (7,484)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZ-Z—hE+_-_A=+—H

RZIEZEEFE—F—H (117,035) 189,799
Loss for the year FREE (68,543) =
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEFE+ZA=+—H (185,578) 189,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 4] EENBERER (FE(RBEE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION Bl (55622%) $E3831%. &
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BBESFREHR) RO (B
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE) REA LHRAIR
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT E K E)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EFRITBAERNME
The remuneration of every directors and the chief BRESRITHREZNFMEI M
executive is set out below: IS
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BE_T”_THF+-H=+—H
IR

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

AEARE (FARFARSANEAR) EEMRANEHEARRKHMNE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other services

Remunerations in connection

paid or with the

Employer's receivable  management

Estimated contributionto inrespectof  of the affairs

money a retirement accepting  of the company

Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme director undertaking Total

HES

EHER

FATH

HWBAR

HEREE  SRMREN

HftEHs EHER BUEHE EMBBERT
Name #a [k ¥t B RN fREEEE HENEIER s RRHE a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFR AEBTFR AEBTFT AEBTFR AEBTR AEBFT AEBFR AEEFRT AEEFT

Executive directors BIES
Mr. Chen Zhi (CEO, Note a) ESkE

(fEssi o Mista) 180 1,620 - - - - = = 1800
M. Yu Shiguan ARERE 180 720 36 - - " - = 947
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREE 120 - - - = = = o 120
Ms. Chen Min [ bes 120 - - - - = = = 120
Independent and BUk#TES

non-executive directors

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BELKE 120 - - - - = = o 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry EmMRE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BRfrs 120 - - - = = = o 120

242 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMEE

41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(Continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

41 EFFBRIER (FE(REE
1) (38622F) 53831% . 1 F]
(RBESFHRER) RHE (B
622GE) ”REA LHHRAR

ENHKE) (&)

(A) EFRITHAEHBME (&)

BHE_Z—NF+B=+—H

IEEFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

AEARE (FAREATNANEAT) EXMRANBHELRERNMNE

Emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services

Remunerations  in connection
paid or with the
receivable management
Employer's inrespect of  of the affairs of
Estimated  contribution to accepting the company
Discretionary Housing ~ money value of a retirement office  orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HES
AEER
FRFY
HRBAT
HEREE  FHMREN
HihBRIN BIRER BfiEfd EMRBEAR
Name #4 ik e WiETEa EEEE  RHENEE HENEIHER B GE ltslilE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTFT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTFT AEBTT AEBTT
Executive directors #i7E%
Mr. Chen Zhi (CEO, Note a) RS kL
(fTERs 0 Mska) 180 1620 - - - - - - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan RHERLE 180 720 36 - - 1 - - 947
Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming Siuming RIEBLL (FTEER
(Former CEQ, Note b) Hiztb) 157 2,203 - - - 118 = S 2478
Non-executive directors FHTER
M. Chen Wei Dong BREREE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min (e 120 S = = - - - - 120
Independent and BUHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BELCEE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry EABLE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BREERLE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Notes: Btz

(a)  Appointed as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019

(b)  Resigned as CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019

(@ MRIZ-—NETANBEZER
TAFITE A EL

by MIE—AE+REAARELR

BTEUAB

THEERERA

a3

“ECTHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BERRMIEE

41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There is no other loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with all directors
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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